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In compliance with the Open Public Meetings Act of the State of New Jersey adequate notice of this meeting has been mailed to The Daily Record and posted at the municipal building.

ROLL CALL:

Members Present:   Rene Gadelha, Nelson Russell, Jim Staszak, Scott Van Ness, Howie Weiss

Members Excused:  John Cavanaugh, Joe Fleischner, John Mania, Mayor David Scapicchio, Dan Nelsen, Steve Bedell

Professionals Attending:  Chuck McGroarty, Planning Consultant, Eugene Buczynski, P.E., Edward Buzak, Esq., Catherine Natafalusy, Planning Administrator

Professionals Excused:  Tiena Cofoni, Esq.



 MR. WEISS:

Catherine lets also add to the minutes that tonight with us we have Melissa who’s a 7th grader from the St. Michaels School who is taking a class in her school on the Constitution.  Is that right?  Would you like to say anything tonight?  You don’t have to say anything that’s okay.  Thank you.


APPROVAL OF MINUTES

February 10, 2011 Public Meeting


Motion:

Nelson Russell


Second:

Jim Staszak

Roll Call:


Rene Gadelha

- yes


Nelson Russell

- yes


Jim Staszak

- yes


Scott Van Ness

- yes



APPROVAL OF RESOLUTIONS

Resolution #PB 10-34 – New Cingular Wireless PC LLC (Block 7500, Lot 6)
MR. VAN NESS:

Can we ask the attorney if there were any changes of all of the, of any of the upcoming ordinances that are about to be approved?

MR. BUZAK:

No none of the resolutions that are on the agenda tonight have been changed from what you have in your packet.

MR. VAN NESS:

Thank you.

MR. STASZAK:

I make a motion we approve PB 10-34.

MR. VAN NESS:

I’ll second that.

MR. WEISS:

Second by Scott, any conversation?  Roll Call.

MRS. NATAFALUSY:
Rene Gadelha

- yes




Nelson Russell

- yes




Jim Staszak

- yes




Scott Van Ness

- yes

Resolution #PB 10-13 (Amended) – Strony, Kristen / Torchia, Michael (Block 4502, Lot 1)

Motion:

Scott Van Ness


Second:

Nelson Russell

Roll Call:


Rene Gadelha

- yes


Nelson Russell

- yes


Jim Staszak

- yes


Scott Van Ness

- yes


Howie Weiss

- yes

Resolution #PB 11-01 – Anton Filimonchuk (Block 3903, Lot 1)

Motion:

Jim Staszak


Second:

Nelson Russell

Roll Call:


Rene Gadelha

- yes


Nelson Russell

- yes


Jim Staszak

- yes


Scott Van Ness

- yes


Howie Weiss

- yes

Resolution #07-40 ZBA – Lozier Estates (Block 2801, Lots 11 & 14)

Motion:

Rene Gadelha


Second:

Scott Van Ness

Roll Call:


Rene Gadelha

- yes


Nelson Russell

- yes


Jim Staszak

- yes


Scott Van Ness

- yes


Howie Weiss

- yes

Resolution #PB 08-03 – Mt. Olive Ind’l Realty (One year extension of prel. site plan) (Block 107, Lot 3)

Motion:

Jim Staszak


Second:

Scott Van Ness

Roll Call:


Rene Gadelha

- yes


Nelson Russell

- yes


Jim Staszak

- yes


Scott Van Ness

- yes


Howie Weiss

- yes

Resolution #PB 07-10 – Mt. Olive Ind’l Realty (One year extension of prel. site plan) (Block 104, Lot 4)

Motion:

Nelson Russell


Second:

Rene Gadelha

Roll Call:


Rene Gadelha

- yes


Nelson Russell

- yes


Jim Staszak

- yes


Scott Van Ness

- yes


Howie Weiss

- yes

Resolution #PB 08-07 – Mt. Olive Ind’l Realty (One year extension of prel. site plan) 

(Block 102, Lots 11 & 14)

Motion:

Nelson Russell


Second:

Jim Staszak

Roll Call:


Rene Gadelha

- yes


Nelson Russell

- yes


Jim Staszak

- yes


Scott Van Ness

- yes


Howie Weiss

- yes

Resolution #PB 08-10 – 850 Clark Drive (2nd One year extension of final site plan) (Block 102, Lot 16)

Motion:

Scott Van Ness


Second:

Rene Gadelha

Roll Call:


Rene Gadelha

- yes


Nelson Russell

- yes


Jim Staszak

- yes


Scott Van Ness

- yes


Howie Weiss

- yes

Resolution #PB 02-07 – Toll New Jersey V, LP (Morris Hunt) (extension of final major sub to 2/16/12) (Block 4400, Lots 86 & 108)

Motion:

Jim Staszak


Second:

Rene Gadelha

MR. WEISS:

Any conversation?

MS. GADELHA:

Yes I think you said 02-05 so just for the record I think its 07 and I just wanted to have some conversation. 

MR. WEISS:

Please, okay so for the record it’s PB 02-07.  Go ahead Rene.

MS. GADELHA:

I’m sorry?

MR. WEISS:

You wanted to have a conversation?

MS. GADELHA:

That was it.  And I think I’m wrong, Scott told me it was New Jersey V and I was looking at it incorrectly.  So I apologize.

MR. WEISS:

No problem.  Any further comments?  Seeing none roll call.

MRS. NATAFALUSY:
Rene Gadelha

- yes




Nelson Russell

- yes




Jim Staszak

- yes




Scott Van Ness

- yes




Howie Weiss

- yes

MR. BUZAK:

You may want to explain how we just went through nine things and it looks like we didn’t do anything.  I went to a meeting they voted on nine resolutions it took five minutes and we all went home.

MR. WEISS:

Yes what Mr. Buzak is explaining is that these are summaries of applications that we’ve previously heard.  So it’s not like somebody came up and we gave them an approval there’s been hearings and in this case there’s nine over what time period would you say Catherine?

MRS. NATAFALUSY:
The last couple of months.

MR. WEISS:

So it’s not common that we do so many at one time but tonight you just got the benefit of seeing the Planning Board approval on (inaudible).


COMMITTEE REPORTS

MR. WEISS:

All right let’s move into committee reports which should move pretty quickly.  There’s no Mayor to give a report, Mr. Mania is not here from Council.  Environmental Commission Nelson do you have anything for us?

MR. RUSSELL:

Yeah we met last night we discussed well water testing by the Southbranch Watershed Association we’ll  be selling kits on Saturday April 30th and Sunday May 1st 9:00 to 2:00 and then taking a collection Monday, May 2nd from 6:00 to 10:00.  

MR. WEISS:

Thank you.  Anything else?

MR. RUSSELL:

That’s it.

MR. WEISS:

Thank you very much Nelson.  Jim anything on the Ordinance Committee?

MR. STASZAK:

We met yesterday we’re reviewing several ordinances and site plans and lots for review and once we complete it we’ll bring it back to the entire Board.

MR. WEISS:

Perfect thanks very much.  I have nothing on Street Naming Committee and Rene do you have anything on Open Space?

MS. GADELHA:

Nothing to report.

MR. WEISS:

Okay.  Anything else any other reports perhaps Gene, Chuck, Ed?

MR. BUZAK:

I have nothing.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
I have nothing.

MR. MCGROARTY:
No.
MR. WEISS:

And  Tiena is feeling well?

MR. BUZAK:

Yes she is.

MR. WEISS:

And maybe now is a good time, bad time but I think we should, you know I don’t know who was able to attend the service for Dan’s wife Francine but certainly our prayers go out to Dan and his daughter.  I was there I certainly gave our condolences on behalf of the Board if anybody went that was to be a bonus.  And so we look forward to Dan’s return as quickly as he’s able to come back.  



DEVELOPMENT MATTERS

APPLICATION #PB 11-02 – WICKLOW & LAURANO – (Block 6800, Lot 11)
MR. WEISS:

That being said let’s move to our first development matter of the evening.  It is PB 11-02 Wicklow & Laurano coming in for preliminary final site plan with variances at Block 6800, Lot 11 located at 362 Route 206.  Good evening.

MR. SORDILLO:

Good evening Chairman, members of the Board my name is Joe Sordillo I’m an attorney with McElroy, Deutsch, Mulvaney & Carpenter and I’m here to represent the applicant Wicklow & Laurano Properties, LLC.  With me today I have three potential witnesses or three witnesses that I will be presenting.  I don’t know if we would like to swear them in at this point before we proceed.

MR. BUZAK:

Why don’t we do it as they testify.

MR. SORDILLO:

Sure.  Initially I just wanted to generally present the application.  This is actually a Phase 2 application this was here before the Board as a Phase 1 application for the use of the property.  This property as the Chairman had mentioned is Block 6800, Lot 11 362 Route 206 this property is located in the G-I zone district General Industrial.  The property has got approval to be used for the outside storage of equipment and vehicles for applicant’s landscaping business.  There is no improvement that was approved by the Board subject to the Phase 1 approval and there was to be no occupancy of the existing building it was only to be used for storage.  At this time there’s been no violations the applicant has been utilizing the property pursuant to the approval.  In the meantime the applicant has went to the DEP to get approvals for work within the property because the property is located within the Stream Corridor and the Stream Corridor Buffer.  So there was required DEP approvals with regard to any work, any soil disturbance, anything whatsoever to be done in the property needed DEP approval.  So at this point after the applicant received Phase 1 approval it took some time lots of money and lots of effort but is now happy to say that it’s received all required approvals to now proceed with the development of the property from the DEP.  So now we’re here before the Board looking for the Board’s approval and signing off on the proposed development.  Mostly you’ll hear testimony today from the applicant and the engineer.  Most of the development is very constrained by the DEP the DEP limited very much what we could do with the property, how it can be used, and where it can be located.  You’ll hear testimony also about how there’s now a number of development restrictions on the property that now restrict the area that can be even used by the applicant.  The rest is going to be under deed restrictions some have been recorded, some are still being worked out with the terms with the DEP but will be recorded for the property restricting any development or any use of the property including maintenance and lawn maintenance and landscaping as well.  So at this point I would like to introduce my first witness which is John Wicklow a member of the applicant Wicklow & Laurano.
(JOHN WICKLOW SWORN IN FOR THE RECORD)

MR. BUZAK:

Please be seated and can you just state your name and business address for the record spelling your last name while you sit down?

MR. WICKLOW:

John Wicklow (W-I-C-K-L-O-W) address is 362 Route 206, Flanders.

MR. BUZAK:

Thank you sir.

MR. SORDILLO:

Mr. Wicklow could you please just identify who you are in connection with the applicant.

MR. WICKLOW:

I’m a 50 percent partner in the business, President of the company.  

MR. SORDILLO:

And when did you or the applicant purchase the property?

MR. WICKLOW:

Purchased it in January, February of 2007.

MR. SORDILLO:

And you heard my recitation of the Phase 1 approval but for the record could you testify as to what you have obtained for the property at this point under the prior Planning Board approval.

MR. WICKLOW:

Just as you stated restricted use for storage of vehicles and equipment on the grounds within the confines of the fence as well as within the building, the area of the building.

MR. SORDILLO:

And part of that approval was to be a removal of a fuel tank and then a decommissioning of another was that completed?

MR. WICKLOW:

That was completed.

MR. SORDILLO:

And could you just briefly explain what was done?

MR. WICKLOW:

We removed one of the fuel tanks as requested off site and basically stopped using the other one it was basically powered by a power cord and we just unplugged it.

MR. SORDILLO:

And maybe to give a little history for the Board because it has been some time since we’ve been here, do you know what the prior use of the property was?

MR. WICKLOW:

It was a distribution centre for Mohawk Oil where they would bring in large amounts of oil and then fill their trucks and distribute it to their customers.  
MR. SORDILLO:

And how are you currently using the property?

MR. WICKLOW:

Currently just for storage of our vehicles and equipment.

MR. SORDILLO:

And can you just describe your business for the Board?

MR. WICKLOW:

We’re a high end residential landscaping and masonry firm that puts in pools, terraces, backyard projects.

MR. SORDILLO:

And can you generally describe what the proposed development is going to be under this Phase 2 application?

MR. WICKLOW:

It will basically be the allowance to demo the existing building and reconstruct it according to what the DEP said we had to do to have an office facility on the second floor and a maintenance facility for our equipment and trucks on the first floor as an in-house shop and then parking in the adjacent parking lot.
MR. WEISS:

Mr. Sordillo can I ask you a quick question?

MR. SORDILLO:

Absolutely.

MR. WEISS:

On the Phase 1 application did you handle this application?

MR. SORDILLO:

No another attorney whose name is Paul Werther he was actually wasn’t a part of our firm at the time but now has since have become affiliated with the McElroy Deutsch firm and you know we’ve come to assist the applicant.

MR. WEISS:

Okay I was just trying to . . . I remembered the application last time.

MR. SORDILLO:

Oh yes no Paul Werther was the prior attorney and he is a member of our firm at this point. 

MR. WEISS:

And then I didn’t want to interrupt what you were saying to Mr. Wicklow but tell me I know you said you got rid of one tank and there’s still one there?

MR. WICKLOW:

There’s two there, there were three.

MR. WEISS:

Okay it sounded like I just . . . my notes were telling me that you had two you removed one.

MR. WICKLOW:

Yeah there was three . . . .

MR. WEISS:

There is definitely two there and neither one of them are . . . .

MR. WICKLOW:

Neither one of them are being used absolutely.

MR. WEISS:

Are they going to eventually be removed as well?

MR. WICKLOW:

 No they are part of our site plan.
MR. SORDILLO:

Now there’s an existing structure on the property correct?

MR. WICKLOW:

Correct.

MR. SORDILLO:

And could you generally explain what type of uses would be used for, how you plan on using this existing building?

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Just a question I’m sorry.  Earlier you said you were going to demolish the existing building is that the case?
MR. WICKLOW:

Right that is the case.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
The footings and everything complete demolish?  Was that the original plan before?

MR. WICKLOW:

That was a result of a structural analysis that the DEP made us do to deem that the current building was suitable to withstand the floods that were to theoretically come through the property.  And as a result of that they’re not so by their allowance they’re allowing us to take the building down and reconstruct it within the exact same footprint of what’s existing to the standards that our structural engineer said they had to be.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Okay thank you.

MR. SORDILLO:

I think I left at my question was what proposed uses are you going to use the building for?

MR. WICKLOW:

The second floor will be an office building, office facility where we’ll have our office manager, our landscape architects and the associates the draftsmen, myself, Mike Laurano will have an office up there.  But just basically general office facility.  And the lower building will be a shop where we’ll maintain and service our vehicles and equipment.
MR. SORDILLO:

Now do you expect to have a lot of employees at the site or will they be off site?

MR. WICKLOW:

We expect to have the majority of our employees off site we’re expecting maybe 4 to 5 people to stay at the building throughout the course of the day but the way our company is set up they report to the yard, get their equipment, their trucks, their work plan and then they leave returning at 5:00.

MR. SORDILLO:

And what are your planned hours of operation?

MR. WICKLOW:

7:00 to 5:00.

MR. SORDILLO:

And do you plan on having a lot of deliveries to the site?

MR. WICKLOW:

No we do not.

MR. SORDILLO:

And could you please just briefly explain why or where the deliveries would be going.

MR. WICKLOW:

Most of our projects are large scale projects where we have direct ship material from the masonry facilities to the yard to the project or same thing with plantings they’re shipped directly from the nursery to the project for efficiency and purposes.

MR. WEISS:

Has there been any kind of receipt going on?  Have you been receiving trucks now through this process?  Like do you guys take deliveries now of anything?

MR. WICKLOW:

There?

MR. WEISS:

Yes.

MR. WICKLOW:

No not at all.

MR. WEISS:

I only ask because I saw the property this morning.

MR. WICKLOW:

Right.

MR. WEISS:

And I just wanted to take a good look at it and it looked like there was a delivery truck there today.  I was curious as to . . .

MR. WICKLOW:

Like a Fed Ex truck maybe?

MR. WEISS:

No, no it wasn’t it was a white truck with some red letters on it.

MR. WICKLOW:

Oh that might be our truck the box truck?

MR. WEISS:

Yeah.

MR. WICKLOW:

Yeah I mean that’s one of our trucks.

MR. WEISS:

I think it said “A” had something on “A” on it.

MR. WICKLOW:

Accurate, Accurate Irrigation is a subsidiary of our company that is an irrigation division within our . . . and the only reason it’s separate is for marketing purposes.   It’s a box truck where all of the plumbing fittings and everything.

MR. WEISS:

Yeah that’s why I was curious because you said you don’t plan on receiving product because you can go on site I thought maybe you were receiving product but your certainly entitled to, that was part of the Phase 1 approval was to store product.  Okay I was just curious what that was.  Thanks for that clarification.  Okay.

MR. SORDILLO:

Actually at this point I am finished questioning this witness if the Board has any questions because I’d like to you know maybe move on to the engineer to fill in some of the blanks. 

MR. WEISS:

Jim.

MR. STASZAK:

Do you plan to have like a display or showroom or anything like that on the property?

MR. WICKLOW:

No we do not.

MR. WEISS:

Nelson.

MR. SORDILLO:

Yeah actually that’s a very good question and I’ll just if I could just follow up on it is do you expect to have any customers coming to the site?  Do you plan on having any walk in business?
MR. WICKLOW:

The type of business we have is on their property so there would be really no need for them to come to our facility because everything is there in their backyards.

MR. STASZAK:

But to pick out materials or to look at materials?

MR. WICKLOW:

There’s no material there to choose we would refer them to a masonry yard or a nursery.

MR. STASZAK:

Okay.

MR. WICKLOW:

Or digital photos.

MR. WEISS:

Anybody else up here have a question for Mr. Wicklow?  Let me open it to the public if there’s anybody from the public that has any questions for Mr. Wicklow based on the testimony?  Mr. Wicklow thank you very much.

MR. SORDILLO:

The next witness I’d like to call will be Craig Villa.

(CRAIG VILLA SWORN IN FOR THE RECORD)

MR. BUZAK:

Please be seated state your name and business address for the record spelling your last name.

MR. VILLA:

My name is Craig Richard Villa that’s (V-I-L-L-A) I’m a professional engineer in New Jersey and I’m a partner in the engineer and surveying firm of Yannaccone & Villa and Aldrich in Chester, New Jersey.

MR. BUZAK:

Thank you sir.

MR. SORDILLO:

Mr. Villa could you just briefly identify your credentials and your experience in the area of engineering.

MR. VILLA:

I’ve testified before this Board on a couple of occasions but I don’t get here too often.  I am a licensed professional engineer in the State of New Jersey I’ve been an engineer licensed in this State since 1980 I have a professional planner’s license which I’ve had since 1986.  Prior to working as an engineer in 1975 I graduated from Lehigh University with a Bachelor of Science and Civil Engineering and subsequently obtained a Master’s of Science in Civil Engineering from NJIT.  

MR. SORDILLO:

Chairman I would like to request that the Board accept this witness as a professional engineer.
MR. WEISS:

Mr. Villa you said you’ve been in front of the Mt. Olive Planning Board?
MR. VILLA:

Yes I represented Mr. Wicklow in the Phase 1 application.

MR. WEISS:

Anybody have any questions for Mr. Villa?  I think we will accept Mr. Villa as a professional engineer.

MR. SORDILLO:

Thank you very much.  Mr. Villa did you prepare the plans that have been submitted to the Board?

MR. VILLA:

Yes they were prepared under my supervision.

MR. SORDILLO:

And could you please identify the proposed improvements on these plans.

MR. VILLA:

Yeah I have mounted an exhibit here I highlighted some of the environmental lines on it but basically . . . .

MR. BUZAK:

Mr. Villa before you start can we mark that as exhibit A-1 and can you just identify it for the record.

MR. VILLA:

Okay and do you want me to put today’s date on it?

MR. BUZAK:

Yes please.

MR. VILLA:

I’m referring to sheet 3 of 11 out of the set of drawings that was given to the Board the site plan drawings prepared by my office.  I have rendered it with some magic markers to identify some of the environmentally constrained land on the property. 

MR. WEISS:

So it’s a representation of environmentally constrained property?

MR. VILLA:

And it also has the zoning information and the horizontal improvements in terms of parking and the building improvements.  It shows the dumpster, it shows the approved fuel tank pad enclosure and the proposed septic system that was being constructed.

MR. WEISS:

So we’ll call it the site layout with color rendering, color marking.  Okay.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Just the date of the plan?

MR. VILLA:

The date of the plan it’s revised, it has a revision 11 on it dated 12/30/10 and its revised note identifies it as the Planning Board submission.  This plan was originally presented in another form obviously when we first came to the Board with our intentions and got that limited approval from you and then we went for the last couple of years to DEP for wetlands approvals and Stream Encroachment, I still call it stream encroachment to be flood hazard area approvals as well as we went back and forth with the Highlands Commission to get their approvals.  

MR. SORDILLO:

Mr. Villa let’s start out with exhibit A-1 could you identify what the blue marker areas indicate?

MR. VILLA:

Okay I’ve used blue for anything in relation to the floodplain.  And the adjacent property to the east of us between the majority of this let’s call it a flag lot and Route 206 there’s a lot identified as Lot 12 in which an unnamed tributary of Drakesbrook flows through that property from north to south.  What we had to do to get our DEP approvals was a significant amount of engineering and hydraulic engineering to do the hydraulics to identify the floodplain on this unnamed tributary because it was not a State studied stream nor was it a FEMA studied stream it was just approximate floodplain on the FEMA maps.  So my client went through a lot of aggravation and money to get the DEP to approve the floodplain on his property and bottom line is the entire property except for a very small area at the entrance is entirely within the floodplain that DEP has jurisdiction over.  The two lines closest to the brook which I did not color the two blue lines here are the floodway which is the area we cannot touch or do anything in so we made sure we stayed out of the floodway and then the flood fringe which is the area from the floodway to the FHA limit in New Jersey Design Flood Limit extended beyond our property toward the Lamtec property to our west.  So the entire property is subject to flooding where we are proposing these limited improvements.

MR. SORDILLO:

And could you just explain the shape of the property is a flag lot correct?

MR. VILLA:

Correct there’s a rectangular piece, oh roughly 200 by 150 feet in the beginning and then it narrows down to a 50 foot staff and then it widens out to the flag portion of the property that extends up, down from Lot 9 past the utility towers toward Lot 13.  

MR. SORDILLO:

And part of the area you identified in the floodplain that was also in a different property not owned by the applicant.

MR. VILLA:

A lot of the stream and some little tributaries and fingers of the stream are part of Lot 12.  You can probably see that a little better if we refer to the cover sheet on the set of drawings you have . . . .

MR. SORDILLO:

Do we want to mark that as . . . .

MR. BUZAK:

Yes we’ll mark that as A-2 and that’s the cover sheet of the drawings that were submitted Mr. Villa?

MR. VILLA:

Yes its sheet 1 of 11 with the revision number 11 of 12/30/10 it’s identified as title sheet.  And it gives you a more overall view of the property on a smaller scale so you can see the shape of the property and you can see the Benjamin Moore facility to the north and the Lamtec facility to the west.  The vacant land that we’re talking about where this tributary of Drakesbrook runs through that’s undeveloped and entirely buffers our property from Route 206.
MR. SORDILLO:

Now back to A-2 could you identify what the green line represents.

MR. VILLA:

Back to A-1 you mean?

MR. SORDILLO:

A-1 I apologize.

MR. VILLA:

Yes the green line represents the areas that have been delineated and approved by DEP to contain freshwater wetlands which is the majority of the floodway and some areas beyond the floodway.  It excludes the driveway entrance to the building and most of the flag portion of the building however since this is a Category 1 Stream and these are exceptional wetlands we do have 150 foot wetlands buffer that pretty much covers a lot of that area where the building is and some of the area where the parking is, and the storage will be.

MR. SORDILLO:

And what does the red line represent?

MR. VILLA:

The red line is the other area of jurisdiction that DEP took under the new Flood Hazard Rules that were adopted about a year, or two years ago I think.  From any existing tributary or stream if it’s considered exceptional or a Category 1 there’s a riparian zone which is also limited by the State and has limited use allowed.  That’s where the red line is they made us do it not only from the main tributary but from some of these finger streams and we identified that riparian zone on the property.

MR. SORDILLO:

And lastly could you identify what the yellow line represents, the yellow highlights.

MR. VILLA:

Well the yellow line was, I should have said it when I was talking about the 150 foot wetland buffers, that’s the 150 foot buffer from the green line out which is identified as a wetland transition area according to the DEP rules, most people call them wetlands buffers.

MR. SORDILLO:

And could you just explain what type of restrictions all of these wetlands, floodplains put on the property.

MR. VILLA:

Well we were grandfathered to limited use of the property under all of these DEP regulations as well as the Highlands Regulations but generally speaking we had to stay out of the floodway portion of the floodplain, we could do limited work within the flood fringe but we had to be a zero net fill calculation.  So because of the ground conditions our septic systems had to be a mounded system because the ground itself is not the greatest for percolation and the ground water table is high.  So we designed a complying mounded septic system but we had to offset the amount of fill that the septic system would take away from the floodplain by adding volume back into the floodplain.  So part of the building is actually going to be on stilts, the northern end within the existing footprint the northern end of the building had to be open below the flood level as a storage area alone.  So we’ve reclaimed some volume back into the floodplain by doing that, we have to re-grade the parking area ever so slightly to make up for some of that volume also.  Originally we had asked for a hardship because of the limited space on the property, we actually took out some volume and they put in a wall along the western property line but it wasn’t enough to make up for the volume of mounded septic system.  So we went through a lot of permutations with our architect and with the DEP to meet the new zero net fill requirement and we got that approval from DEP.
MR. SORDILLO:

And the applicant did receive all approvals from the DEP for all of the proposed improvements.

MR. VILLA:

For all the proposed improvements including the dumpster, fuel tanks, the mounded septic system, the parking area, modifications to the structure, it was all part of our approval which was a very detailed arduous process with several meetings with DEP to make sure we met all of these new restrictions in the floodplains that some of them had an existing prior to 2008.

MR. SORDILLO:

And those approvals include an exemption number four in water quality management from the NJDEP Highlands Act Letter of Interpretation Verification for wetlands from DEP and then also a Flood Hazard individual permit.

MR. VILLA:

Yeah we had to deal with different agencies within the DEP.  First we went to the Highlands people to make sure what we wanted to do met their regulations, then we had to go to the wetlands people and see what the wetlands were and what we could do within the buffer areas.  We had to go to the Stream Encroachment or Floodplain people to make sure that what we wanted to do met their rules and then we had to make sure we met all three criteria and it could be approved by all of the agencies of DEP that needed to give us their approval.  

MR. SORDILLO:

And could you just identify for the record what the proposed improvements are for the property?

MR. VILLA:

Again generally speaking as noted in Mr. Buczynski’s report we’re renovating and modifying the structure that’s there creating a second story, new walls but staying within the existing building footprint.  Part of that building will be open to the air and to flooding that will be storage so we reclaim some volume back in the floodplain.  The second storage would be office, the first story a limited part of the first story that’s not in the floodplain will be within the walls will be a garage and storage internal storage area.  The second floor consists of about 4,300 square feet of office use, the first floor will be about 1,100 almost 1,200 square feet of open storage area to allow volume back in the floodplain and basically a third of that will be 3,100 square feet will be industrial use inside the walls on the lower level.  But they’ll all have to be . . . it all had to be structurally designed, it had to resist flood damage, it had to resist flowing water, it had to resist buoyancy, we spent a lot of money or my client spent a lot of money on structural designs to meet all of the detailed and structural requirements for a building located in the flood fringe.

MR. MCGROARTY:
May I, I’m sorry Mr. Chairman may I ask one question?

MR. WEISS:

Sure Chuck go ahead.

MR. MCGROARTY:
I’m sorry to interrupt your presentation.  Mr. Villa there are two sets of architectural plans with this.  Were you going to speak to that?

MR. VILLA:

I think my client will more than I will but . . . .
MR. MCGROARTY:
Somebody will.

MR. SORDILLO:

Yeah I will re-introduce the . . . .

MR. VILLA:

It’s more of an aesthetic issue when it comes to the two different designs.

MR. SORDILLO:

I wanted to get through some of the technical parts before we moved back onto that.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Okay.

MR. WEISS:

Before we get too much further Ms. Gadelha has a question. 

MS. GADELHA:

Just a quick one you were talking about the improvements and you mentioned some of that being open storage for . . . open storage areas?

MR. VILLA:

On the lower level yes.

MS. GADELHA:

Is that just for vehicles because you said you weren’t having any of the product per se there.  What would be in that open storage area what are you storing?

MR. WICKLOW:

It would be like seasonal equipment snow plows in the summer, lawnmowers in the winter.

MS. GADELHA:

So equipment or vehicles okay thanks.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Just a question on that, is that the area that’s on stilts basically correct?

MR. VILLA:

Correct.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Is the DEP allowing you to store vehicles and equipment in that area?

MR. VILLA:

Yes.  I mean there’s a lot of signs they’re making us put up for people that aren’t familiar with the fact that we’re in the floodplain where you know we have to warn them that if cars or personal property of vehicles are left there that there is the potential for flood damage if the stream comes up.  And one other exhibit I’d like to maybe mark is sheet 8 of 11 of our plans.  Should we call this A-3?

MR. BUZAK:

Yes.

MR. VILLA:

With today’s date and this is what I call the bottom line drawing.  I have, this is a blow up so it’s a little bigger and easier to see.  What I’ve added is an orange color and that’s the color where they got us you know and all future owners of this property will also be restricted by conservation easements.  There’s several of them on this property because it’s kind of a weird shape but out in the front this whole area this square area to the south of the entrance is part of conservation easement “A” which is Subcategory A2.  There is an area along the driveway on our property and a majority I would say at least two thirds of the flagstaff that’s within a conservation easement that was required by the State in compliance with wetlands and flood hazard area rules.  There’s also a little area to the north so basically where I’m pointing here is the limits of the property along with the driveway that can be used by our client and to make sure it was delineated not only is there a fence up to the building but south of the building and south of the storage area around the septic system and up the west side they required us to put in a fence, split rail fence to delineate so no one goes beyond those limits and encroaches in these restricted areas.  So that whole area bounded by the orange highlighter here is restricted on the property by the State and it will be documented in deeds and deed descriptions.  I actually brought a copy of those descriptions which was requested by Mr. Buczynski for his file and all of these will be filed with the County Hall of Records.  
MR. SORDILLO:

Mr. Villa when you referenced the, part of that fencing that was around the some part of the storage area as well correct that it would be . . .

MR. VILLA:

That’s correct and the gravel area that will remain and it will go along this line here and then along the south and along the north, I mean along the east, the western portion is already defined by a retaining wall and the northern portion will be defined by a chain link fence which is basically there now.  

MR. SORDILLO:

Mr. Villa could you please just explain what type of water and sewer services are available for the property.

MR. VILLA:

Yeah we have a well on the property that we’re proposing to continue to use.  The septic system will be entirely replaced as I discussed in my earlier testimony with a mounded system which is shown as a rectangular thing here.   Let’s call it down towards the southwestern end of the non-restricted part. 

MR. SORDILLO:

And the applicant has actually obtained approval for this septic system already from . . .

MR. VILLA:

Yes the Board of Adjustment has approved our mounded septic system.

MR. SORDILLO:

The Board of Health.

MR. VILLA:

I mean the Board of Health has approved that system and there is an approval of that contingent upon this approval.

MR. SORDILLO:

And can you describe the parking requirement and the parking that’s going to be developed for the site?

MR. VILLA:

Yeah the parking is shown on the smaller scale drawing which was A-1.  We calculated it based on your ordinance that there were 24 parking stalls required that would include 1 handicap stall.  Ten of those stalls would be located in front of the new building even though the front of the building faces towards the back of the property we would call it or to the west.  There’s a few spaces down toward the southwest corner and those are all on pavement that exists now and will remain.  The rest of this area will be gravel as I said except for where the septic system is.  Up against the retaining wall on the western end we’re proposing parking that would allow for another 8 spaces, or 9 spaces excuse me and then there are 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 spaces shown in the southeast corner at the end of the gravel area.  And like Mr. Buczynski pointed out there’s definitely 14 stalls that will be on gravel so we are asking for the required exemption for not paving those stalls it’s just going to be a storage area anyway and an area for equipment.  In order to delineate those stalls I’ve discussed with my client, Mr. Buczynski asked what might we do to identify those spaces.  There’s a couple of options that I think we can paint lines on the retaining wall up at this end, or we could put in some car stops.  But basically we just wanted to prove that in accordance with your ordinance there’s more than enough parking.  My client feels that the parking that’s the 10 spaces up toward the paved area in front of the building will be the ones that are used by the few people that will stay on the site during the day.  
MR. WEISS:

I have a quick question though about, and maybe Mr. Wicklow you might be better able to answer it.  You have drivers, workers do they report to the site with their vehicles, jump in a work vehicle and go?

MR. WICKLOW:

Some do yes.

MR. WEISS:

So my question was you have employees that will drive their personal vehicles, leave their car there and pick up a work vehicle.

MR. WICKLOW:

Yes.

MR. WEISS:

And so you have accommodated for those spaces on paved parking?

MR. WICKLOW:

Paved or gravel yeah.

MR. WEISS:

Gene do you see that as a problem?  I know we talked about gravel for being kind of okay for trucks or storage of trucks.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Well I don’t see a big problem as long as the Board wants to waive the paving of those areas. 

MR. WEISS:

Tell me again Mr. Villa which areas are paved for parking?

MR. VILLA:

It’s hard to see on the drawing, the driveway is paved and when you come around the turn you go through the metal gate there is an area just in front of the building and kind of around the corner of the building that’s paved.  It extends out from the building I would say approximately oh let me make sure I got the right scale, it extends out from the building now about 70 feet from the what we call the front of the building or the western side of the building and it runs down about oh maybe 150 feet from the gates.
MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Mr. Villa will there be enough parking spaces on the pavement for the employees?

MR. VILLA:

It depends on how many cars I mean you’ve got roughly 10 spaces total on the pavement that includes one handicap space so let’s say there’s nine that either the employees in the building, the owners or some of the workers could use.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
How many do they need?  That’s what I’m asking.

MR. WICKLOW:

It would be close I mean I think right now probably close to that number are people that drive and leave their cars.  

MR. SORDILLO:

But Mr. Villa isn’t it true that the ability to pave was also restricted by the current DEP approvals so we do have some restrictions on where we can pave and where we can pave.

MR. VILLA:

Well yeah obviously we can’t raise the grade to pave on top of the gravel and we felt that with storage and larger equipment here it didn’t make sense to pave it and to have the gravel break up and so forth in the floodplain.  So we’re actually going to re-grade it and eliminate some of the paving down in an area where we’re mitigating with some re-forestation and then we’re going to leave the gravel for storage and for any additional vehicles that can’t stay on pavement.

MR. WEISS:

Do we have any kind of maintenance program or issues that we know of?  When you park on gravel over time does it need to be maintained?

MR. VILLA:

I don’t think so.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
I guess the only concern would be if it does flood because it’s in the floodplain it would have to be restored and maintained.

MR. VILLA:

Well yeah it might have to be graded if ruts are caused or anything but they’re very low maintenance when it comes to parking in a gravel area like that.  This isn’t a commercial building or a public building where people from the public would be expected to deal with any kind of . . .

MR. WEISS:

Well that’s certainly a positive bit of information the fact that it’s not a traditional retail operation where you’re not going to get a lot of movements in and out.
MR. VILLA:

It’s all his employees and the workers that go out on the site.

MR. WEISS:

Rene?

MS. GADELHA:

Yeah you had mentioned Mr. Wicklow when you were testifying earlier that I think it was Accurate is a subsidiary.  How many subsidiary’s do you deal with and will those people need to park on any given day so you’ve got the four or five people who are in the building 7:00 to 5:00 and then the workers that take the trucks, and then how many potential . . . 

MR. WICKLOW:

There’s one subsidiary which is Accurate and that is part of the total.

MS. GADELHA:

That your including in that.

MR. WICKLOW:

Yes.

MS. GADELHA:

Okay thank you.

MR. SORDILLO:

I might also make mention for the record that vehicles could park within the building itself.  There are garage doors on the southern end.  We didn’t take that as part of the required parking but I don’t see where with the scope of his operation where parking is going to be an issue at all.

MR. WEISS:

Scott you had a question?

MR. VAN NESS:

When your employees come in and they pick up a truck they leave with the truck.

MR. WICKLOW:

Correct.

MR. VAN NESS:

Which opens a parking spot?

MR. WICKLOW:

But then they take that parking spot with their car.

MR. VAN NESS:

And then you’ll have remaining spaces available for whatever.

MR. WEISS:

That’s a good point Scott.  Anybody else?  

MR. SORDILLO:

Mr. Villa at this point I’d like to maybe discuss the Board engineer’s report that we received January 17, 2011. 

MR. WEISS:

Sure.  Well before you do that Gene would you prefer that you review your report or (inaudible)?

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Whatever you’d like I mean I can do it it’s not a problem.   Do you want to try and . . . .

MR. SORDILLO:

Absolutely if the Board would rather . . . 

MR. WEISS:

Maybe just to keep things moving perhaps Mr. Buczynski could focus in on the points that he’s concerned about.

MR. SORDILLO:

Absolutely.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
The report is dated January 17th and just for the Board I know you all have a copy but the first two pages basically gave a status of where we are and what approvals they received over the last couple of years.  I know there’s quite a few here.  Under B1 technical items Mr. Villa pretty much addressed the issues relative to the parking and I would think probably curb stops would be the way to go on that.  And I also noted at the bottom of page one regarding the signs that they have to put throughout the area relative to warning flood hazard area the site may become submerged with flood waters during rain storms enter and park at your own risk.  That’s a DEP sign and there’s a bunch of them all over the place.  Page three basically addressed issues relative to relief requested by the Board.  One of the items, I’m trying to see where I had it here was, and we didn’t address it earlier they had requested a waiver from the EIS and I think at least my position would be there may be items relative to critical areas and wetlands really addressed but with the DEP through the various approvals and other than those approvals there’s really nothing else to discuss pertaining to environmental issues.  So I saw no concern with the Board considering waiver of the EIS.  The other . . .

MR. WEISS:

Gene (inaudible) real quick, Nelson has that come up at all from the Environmental Commission no issues?  Okay that (inaudible).

MR. RUSSELL:

All the conservation areas pretty well takes care of it.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Yeah we pretty much covered everything between . . . you’re right Nelson, between the easements and the permits pretty much covers it.  Page three just addressed the variances needed I guess they’re going to address those variances, and design waivers.  Also the design waivers I saw no concerns relative to them I’m not sure if you want to go over each one.

MR. WEISS:

No Gene I think if you generalized that you don’t have a problem with them that’s good enough for me I don’t see any resistance from the Planning Board.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Okay that’s fine.  Page four is the issue relative to the EIS and the Board is going to have to take formal action on that as part of your approval process.  And item number four just referenced what Mr. Villa mentioned earlier regarding new mounted system.  Item five was just regarding the landscape and restoration plans pretty much I’m not sure if they’re going to discuss it but it’s pretty much designed in accordance with the requirements of the DEP.  Mr. Villa are you going to address the landscaping at all?

MR. VILLA:

I think the Board can see that pretty clearly on sheet 7 of 11.  There was a large area to be mitigated as part of these approvals.  

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Item number six just so the Board knows all of the new utilities will be installed underground as required by ordinance.  Item number seven they’re requesting a design waiver from lighting required by ordinance.  I think you might have to address that, the lighting if you want to do it now that’s fine.

MR. VILLA:

I can do that basically now.  My client feels that this area is secure enough that he wouldn’t really want to have lighting for anything after 5:00 p.m. anyway.  He explained his business hours we have very limited lighting there will be some spot lights coming off of the building at the door entrances which is typical.  The only other light we’re proposing is at the fuel tanks where we have an approved containment area for two, I forget how many gallons the fuel tanks were.  Two 1,000 gallon fuel tanks that were approved by DEP to be used on the site and we felt that for emergency purposes we could put a light on a pole for that in case something had to be done at night.

MR. SORDILLO:

And to respond to the engineer’s report asking for some details we do have you know we were able to print out some details as to proposed lighting for that area that I can . . .

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
That’s fine but they should be added to the revised plans.

MR. VILLA:

I can do that, we’ll do that.
MR. SORDILLO:

Does the Chairman or the members of the Board want to have a copy of this?  We made copies for everyone here.

MR. MCGROARTY:
I would like a copy.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
I’ll take a copy now but they should be on the revised plans.  

MS. GADELHA:

Is there lighting at the sign at the driveway entrance?  Will there be any lighting there?

MR. WICKLOW:

There’s not one there now.

MR. WEISS:

Are you going to change that entrance where there’s two cement pillars, concrete pillars are you going to keep that the way it is?

MR. WICKLOW:

That’s there right now.

MR. VILLA:

Those brick pillars.

MR. WEISS:

Brick pillars right, are you going to keep that?

MR. WICKLOW:

We have to. 

MR. WEISS:

Oh you have to okay.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Well maybe we can ask . . . we’ll finish Gene’s and then I want to go back.

MR. WEISS:

Okay.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Item number eight I think from your testimony the loading areas will remain as gravel they won’t be paved?

MR. VILLA:

Yeah we show that there are, according to your ordinance calculation there’s plenty of room for loading areas on this site we identified an area in front of each of the two garage doors on the south end of the building.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
But do you really need . . .

MR. VILLA:

We’re not looking to paint it we’re asking for a waiver for that obviously but we feel that there’s more than enough room on this site for loading.  This isn’t like an office building or a strip mall where we need to paint an area for loading exclusively.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Now you’re not going to have any materials on site correct?

MR. VILLA:

Correct.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
So the loading docks are going to be used to what?

MR. VILLA:

It would be loading of seasonal equipment, lawnmowers, hand tools where the day employees would come in in the day and load their trucks, take their equipment out of the secured area in the building and load their vehicles with what they need for the day or load their trailers.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
So there’s going to be no major rolling trucks coming in and out the site.

MR. VILLA:

Oh no, no, no.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Well Gene can I, excuse me.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Go ahead no by all means.

MR. MCGROARTY:
There are the storage bins right?

MR. WICKLOW:

They’re removed.

MR. MCGROARTY:
They’re being removed?  Oh you’re not keeping them.

MR. SORDILLO:

They’re removed from the site plan.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Okay.

MR. VILLA:

Yeah we show them relocated but if we’re not going to propose them . . . we did show them on the site plan.

MR. WICKLOW:

One thing I do want to clarify about the deliveries, the deliveries of our material will not come but there will be deliveries to the building for office supplies, maybe auto parts for our equipment that sort of delivery we anticipate.  But for material we don’t anticipate.

MR. WEISS:

Okay I don’t think that’s a concern for the Planning Board.

MR. WICKLOW:

I just want to make that clear.

MR. WIESS:

Okay.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Let me just see something just on Gene’s point on the deliveries on sheet 3 it talks about new gravel area to be used for outdoor storage and parking.  So what exactly are we talking about with outdoor storage?
MR. WICKLOW:

Storing of equipment.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Equipment okay so not stone or anything.

MR. WICKLOW:

I don’t think there’s going to be enough room for us to do it within the confines of . . .

MR. MCGROARTY:
Well whether you think there’s enough room is . . . 

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Are you going to do it or are you not going to do it?

MR. MCGROARTY:
Yeah it’s either a yes or no.

MR. SORDILLO:

Let me just ask the question, it’s not that there’s not going to be no deliveries at all to the site it’s just . . . that’s going to be the rarity is that the case?  Or is it that there will be at times a temporary delivery to the site?

MR. WICKLOW:

Let’s say temporary storage it might come and then we’ll take it right to the job.

MR. BUZAK:

Here’s the thing that you know we’re all here trying to go through an application.  What the Board is concerned about and I think what the professionals are concerned about is what happens a year from now when people then say well wait a minute this is stored on the property and we didn’t think that was going to be stored and you said this, and you said that and the plans say this but the testimony was that.  The reality is that we don’t go back, we don’t get transcripts of these and look back and if we have to then none of us have done our job.  Okay?  The purpose of this hearing and this whole presentation is to clarify and specify what you are going to do and be precise.  We’re not here to well we’re going to do this, we’re going to do that and I’m not being critical I’m just saying for the purposes of . . . this Board needs to know what it is it’s approving so that in the event you do something that you’re not supposed to do and we know that and you know what you’re not supposed to do as opposed to everybody walking out of here perhaps feeling good that we got an approval but then really not knowing exactly what we’re going to be doing.  So I think that we need to be as precise as we can be so that when we’re done here and we have the resolutions you know exactly where you stand and the municipality knows exactly where it stands and we’re all on the same page.  So that’s the purpose of the questioning so please don’t misinterpret it but on the other hand you need to be precise about what you’re going to do and not hedge on it.  And again I don’t mean that critically I just mean whatever you’re going to do we need to know that.  So if I might . . .

MR. SORDILLO:

No, no that’s fine I understand your position and that’s what I’m trying to get across because there’s areas demarked for storage of equipment as well as some materials.  It’s the, and I’ll ask for the purposes for testimony I’ll ask the witness to confirm what I’m stating at this point.  
MR. BUZAK:

Well why don’t we just ask the witness to tell us what he’s going to do and, or ask your question as opposed to lead him to it.

MR. SORDILLO:

Well my question then would be will be temporary storage at times with not just equipment but materials that would then be later brought off site?

MR. WICKLOW:

Possibly temporary storage yes.

MR. SORDILLO:

And that’s why there are areas on the site plan that delineate certain storage areas it’s not just for equipment there will be times there will be material there.

MR. WICKLOW:

Yes.

MR. MCGROARTY:
If I may, wouldn’t it be better I mean as I read the plan the area that you’re talking about for the storage is where you would designated parking spaces or it’s on gravel but to the extent you would need them, and you may not, wouldn’t it better if you’re going to have storage of material just to have a designated area and bins and the like to contain them?  Or are you, the DEP put the kibosh on that and so you could not do that.

MR. VILLA:

No the DEP does allow storage in a floodplain and they were very clear on that.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Okay.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Temporary storage or permanent storage?

MR. VILLA:

As long as it’s temporary and not permanent.  The only permanent thing we’re allowed to do here is the building.

MR. MCGROARTY:
What does temporary mean then please?  What is your understanding (inaudible).

MR. VILLA:

It doesn’t have a foundation it’s not permanently anchored into the ground it’s . . . .

MR. MCGROARTY:
Okay I mean . . . 

MR. BUZAK:

I thought it was temporal when you said temporary I thought you meant temporal in terms of time.  It would be there for a day or two or three or four as opposed to a year.  I think what you’re saying is no it can be there for an entire year, it can be there forever but the facility that is going to enclose this is not going to be permanent structure.

MR. VILLA:

Correct.

MR. BUZAK:

So the permanency goes to the structure not to the time period in which this stuff will be stored.
MR. BUCZYNSKI:
If it’s there for a certain period isn’t it considered filling a floodplain?

MR. VILLA:

No it depends on the type of material and the structural aspect of . . . 

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Okay tell us what type of materials you’re going to be storing there.

MR. VILLA:

If it’s a pile of wood chips or some lumber for some forms or some brick that he uses for patios, for pavers they do not have a problem with that as a temporary material stored on site.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
I guess the question goes back again how long is temporary?

MR. MCGROARTY:
Yeah I think for the town’s purposes calling it temporary is inviting a headache for you Mr. Wicklow and your partner because ultimately there may be a question well what temporary means as Mr. Buzak said for a specified period of time as opposed to something lacking of permanent structure.  So again I mean would it be better just saying this is the area that we’re going to . . . if we have this product come in this is where we want to put it?
MR. VAN NESS:

Mr. Chair?

MR. WEISS:

Scott?

MR. VAN NESS:

Just call it storage area.  Why do you need to use the word temporary for materials?  Materials are stored . . .

MR. MCGROARTY:
I think they’re doing it because it’s also located on where parking might be and so . . . but I think we’re all, I mean let’s just for the . . . .

MR. VAN NESS:

In other words they should probably designate an area for storage of materials bottom line.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Bottom line to be most honest the likelihood that if material is brought in and left there it will used there and I guess the question to the applicant then is you know and to the Board really can some of those potential parking spaces on gravel be sacrificed for the sake of letting that be a storage area.  And if it is that storage area that’s the only storage area there won’t be storage elsewhere.

MR. VAN NESS:

Can it be a storage parking area?

MR. MCGROARTY:
Sure I mean yeah why not I mean it’s . . . but if the Board is okay with that and if you are then tonight would be (inaudible) to lay that all out because the last thing anybody wants I’m sure is for someone to go out a year from now and say you’re not allowed to stock pile stone there that’s your parking.

MR. VAN NESS:

I mean I would imagine that they do a job that they have pavers and bricks and stone and all of that and when they’re done with the job they’re going to have some leftover material in all likelihood and if they can’t return it you’ve got to store it at least temporarily. 

MR. VILLA:

Until it can be used on another job.

MR. VAN NESS:

And that could be, it could be next week, it could be six months from now, or a year even.  So you’re going to need a place to put the stuff that’s called storage.  Why you would set yourself up for a problem by calling anything temporary is I think my opinion is that you’d be making a mistake.

MR. VILLA:

Maybe I was confusing the Board by saying temporary.  It’s not permanent it’s not a permanent structure anchored structure type storage you know?

MR. WICKLOW:

Like a shed or something like that you know?

MR. MCGROARTY:
I think you were being conservative in a you know to . . . in a good way I mean being conservative to say you know . . . but if again if the Board if the DEP has no problem then the Planning Board is okay with given the description of the business that you have and the likelihood that you’re not going to have a lot of traffic back there except your own employees you’ve testified you don’t have customers come to the site.  But again if it’s going to be that area then that is the area and no other.  So it shouldn’t be scattered around the site you would have to be careful that that area works for you and that’s where it should stay.  It’s entirely up to the Board you might have to waive the number of spaces or something.

MR. WEISS:

Well I think it’s very clear to the Planning Board what kind of operation you’re proposing so I don’t see a problem.  You’ve been very upfront with what you want to do and you’re certainly not running a retail showroom.

MS. GADELHA:

I have a quick question.

MR. WEISS:

Sure.

MS. GADELHA:

So we talked about the floodplains and then there’s that brook, let’s say it’s mulch or something that you know is really light weight how often does it flood back there and what’s to say I mean and maybe I’m chicken little over here but you know it floods and whatever the debris from the material gets into the floodplain is that . . . I don’t know I’m not familiar with . . .

MR. MCGROARTY:
No I think it’s an interesting question I was wondering why DEP wouldn’t let them put more permanent structures to prevent exactly that happening.

MS. GADELHA:

Right.

MR. VAN NESS:

And you’ve all, you’ve been back there right?

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Yeah.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Yeah.

MS. GADELHA:

I haven’t .

MR. VAN NESS:

I don’t think it even floods above the driveway I’ve never seen water above the driveway.  Maybe the long driveway has like a small . . . .

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
I don’t think the building area has flooded.

MR. VAN NESS:

No I’ve never seen water back there and I’ve been back there probably more than they have and they own it now.

MR. WEISS:

Mr. Wicklow do you have a comment?

MR. WICKLOW:

Well I was going to say with all of this rain that we had you know the irony of the whole thing was nothing flooded and I mean that was an enormous amount of rain, snow melting and . . .
MR. WEISS:

The real interesting thing is this was a business that was in business for years, years Mohawk Oil was there.

MR. WICKLOW:

Yes since like the 1950’s and they would testify that it never flooded.

MR. WEISS:

So it’s not like your redeveloping an underdeveloped area.

MR. WICKLOW:

Correct.

MR. VAN NESS:

Basically it’s built above the rest of the area around it where all of the water is.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Yeah.

MR. MCGROARTY:
So whether or not . . . and I guess the question is it would be in their interest not to have this product flow away because obviously that doesn’t help them but I was wondering the same thing I was wondering why . . . what does DEP allow you to put, would they allow you to put in their infinite wisdom do they allow sort of blocks to be put down as long as they’re not anchored?

MR. VILLA:

Well they don’t have a checklist because I think they feel that if it’s valuable or if it’s too light and it’s going to float away and it’s valuable to these guys they’re going to try to move it if there’s any warning from the weather service as to when we’re going to have any major storms.  And it’s in their best interest to maintain that properly and not let it flow down the stream.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
That’s where they don’t allow any structures because structures they feel occupy the floodplain. 

MR. VILLA:

Correct and there’s also more of a safety issue with a structure if it collapses in a flood or you know somebody is stranded in a house or something.  But in floodplains they allow you know plantings, they allow storage of material that’s not nailed down from a practical perspective plus the fact that you know this was a grandfathered site.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Enough of that?

MR. MCGROARTY:
Well . . . .

MR. BUZAK:

Are we going to have a designated area?

MR. MCGROARTY:
Yeah and that would include also you have the existing storage racks in the lower portion of the parking lot, I guess the southeastern corner.  The existing storage racks for lumber that’s to be relocated?  Do I read that correctly?
MR. WICKLOW:

Yes you do.

MR. VILLA:

Yes.

MR. MCGROARTY:
So with all of that . . . and that says on gravel so I’m not sure of where on the site you’re going to put it but . . . 

MR. VILLA:

Well we did show an area, a potential area for that and the intent where there was to move it as far away from the stream for just what . . . 

MR. MCGROARTY:
Oh I see it’s over by the septic area?

MR. WICKLOW:

Yes.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Okay.

MR. VILLA:

Ms. Gadelha was worried about you know to get it on the gravel, on the impervious area and take it off of the area closer to that ditch and the stream.

MR. MCGROARTY:
So if the Board is comfortable with that that would mean that the applicant would affirm that these would be the two locations for these types of materials?

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
As noted on the plans right now.  Right?

MR. MCGROARTY:
Yes.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
And no where else at this point correct?

MR. VILLA:

Basically the DEP made us confine this storage of these let’s call them movable materials and equipment within that area shown with the line with the circles for the split rail fence delineation.

MR. WEISS:

You said that’s the only place where you could put it within that line?

MR. WICKLOW:

Well Mike and I were just talking; maybe if we took some parking spots up in the front where the dumpster enclosure is and made that a storage area that way it’s out of the floodway or out of the proximity of the stream.
MR. SORDILLO:

Mr. Chairman maybe at this time can we swear in the third witness just so its official he can respond to questions only because he has some . . . 

MR. BUZAK:

Yes I’m sorry.

(MICHAEL LAURANO SWORN IN FOR THE RECORD)
MR. BUZAK:

Would you please state your name and business address for the record spelling your last name.

MR. LAURANO:

Michael Laurano (L-A-U-R-A-N-O) 362 Route 206.

MR. BUZAK:

Thank you sir.

MR. SORDILLO:

And Mr. Laurano you are a principal of the applicant as well?

MR. LAURANO:

Yes part owner and operator in the business and the property.

MR. BUZAK:

Thank you.

MR. LAURANO:

I mean is it a designated area that you were looking for  . . . .

MR. MCGROARTY:
Well I thought initially you weren’t going to have materials on site so if you are going to have materials on site I think for your sake and for the Board’s sake and the Town’s sake it would be best to, to the greatest extent possible delineate where you want to keep that material.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
I guess the concern is you know you have that large preexisting gravel area in the back we’re not expecting that to be a storage area, all of that area.  So that’s why we’re trying to limit where is it going to be because as Chuck just said too earlier you said there would be no storage of materials on site, everything is brought to the locations of business.  Well it appears now that there’s going to be material we just don’t want the whole yard to be filled with material.

MR. LAURANO:

Understood.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
You know just tell us what you expect to have on site.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Do you want to take some time to figure out what works for you on that?  I’m sorry Mr. Chairman . . . 

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
I mean do you need a large area that whole gravel area in the back are you planning to use that for a storage area?  

MR. WICKLOW:

No, no, no.

MR. LAURANO:

No.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Okay.  We’re just looking to find out what you need so we know what they’re approving so you don’t have problems later on, that’s all.
MR. WEISS:

There’s no doubt ultimately this protects the applicant.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Exactly that’s what I’m trying to  . . .
MR. WICKLOW:

Right, right, right.

MR. MCGROARTY:
I mean they’ve gone through a lot we understand you’ve gone through quite a bit to get here tonight and I’m sure you don’t want an enforcement act after tonight.

MR. WICKLOW:
Thank you for that, no.

MR. WEISS:

And we certainly have no idea how much product you would want to store I think we leave that up to you I don’t sense the Planning Board is going to restrict you I think we just want to know you tell us where you want to put it and that will . . . for the area that you designate will kind of limit you on how much you’ll have on this site.  

MR. WICKLOW:

It doesn’t matter where it is?  Front or back?

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
As long as it’s not in areas restricted by the DEP.

MR. WICKLOW:

Why don’t we just say from the whole back of the building loading area to the back split rail fence that whole gravel area.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Where you have the loading spaces?

MR. WICKLOW:

From that back area of the building straight back.

MR. WEISS:

And you’re talking about where spots numbered 20 through 24 are located?  
MR. WICKLOW:

Right, correct.

MR. WEISS:

But you’re not planning to remove those spots are you?

MR. LAURANO:

No.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
All the way back to the septic system correct?

MR. LAURANO:

Right.

MR. WICKLOW:

Correct the split rail fence where we can’t go any further.

MR. MCGROARTY:
You mean not just back but you mean going in a southerly direction but over to the west as well?

MR. SORDILLO:

I think what my client is asking for he’s got an approval for this whole area back here to be used for storage.

MR. WEISS:

Mr. Sordillo maybe you can show the Planning Board too by going on the map.
MR. BUCZYNSKI:
That’s the whole area behind the building where you just mentioned which says on the plans preexisting gravel area?  They want all of that area to be storage area.  Correct?

MR. WICKLOW:

Correct.

MR. MCGROARTY:
It would be the southerly edge or side of the building and you want to go back and you would like to use that whole area back in there that says preexisting gravel.  

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
So you’re going to have a good amount . . . you could possibly have a good amount of material on site there.

MR. WICKLOW:

No we never would but if we’re going to designate let’s designate that whole area.

MR. VILLA:

It would be storage for vehicles and materials maybe we should say.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
I don’t know it gives them a lot of leeway you know because how do you limit if you’re saying that’s going to be all the storage area.

MR. WEISS:

Mr. Villa what size area is that would you say?

MR. VILLA:

It’s about 150 foot north to south and it’s about 120 feet east to west.  So it’s not as really as big as you would think.

MR. MCGROARTY:
What were your dimensions I’m sorry.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
A little more than a quarter of an acre.

MR. WEISS:

150 north to south Chuck by 120 east to west.

MR. VILLA:

Correct within that split rail fence area.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
It’s about a third of an acre of storage.

MR. VILLA:

Right.

MR. WEISS:

And just for the record past or to the south of the split rail fence you can’t do anything with the property.

MR. VILLA:

That’s correct well we have to mitigate and reforest it but it’s within our orange conservation area.

MR. WEISS:

Now by storing product in that open gravel space do you lose access to those four parking spaces, the five parking spaces?

MR. VILLA:

I think what he would do would he wouldn’t store completely he’d have to keep himself access for parking he’d have to give himself access to his equipment but I think what we’ve got to keep in mind too here is if he has two trucks and at night he wants to park one blocking the other he doesn’t have a problem with that.  It’s not like we’re designing a parking lot for a strip mall where we always have to have access.  But obviously we’re going to provide access for the Fire Company and we want to keep the garage doors open on the south side.
MR. WEISS:

I think we’re also looking for more of an orderly storage section so I’ll give you an example of what I’m looking at.  There’s a little square that’s marked existing storage racks for lumber to be relocated and you have a delineated rectangular box, what would be the problem with making say taking from that area and going south right to the fence and making that area . . . there seems to be a sufficient amount of space and again I don’t know what your needs are but at least that’s out of the way and then clearly delineated that you’re not just going to use an open lot but you’ll its off to the corner I know it’s a little close to your septic system but that might be smarter where to put it.

MR. LAURANO:

I think with saying the amount of square footage from the building back we’re not necessarily going to be storing things across there we’re just trying to not limiting ourselves to a 40 by 10 spot in the back left corner that you know if someone does come by and there’s a pile of stone or a pallet of bricks that we’re not you know in any violations at that point.
MR. WICKLOW:

That there would be enough God forbid it did come back and there was more than that little area would allow for.

MR. SORDILLO:

I think part of the question is what we’re calling storage at times it’s going to be a drop off point and a loading point to another truck correct?

MR. WICKLOW:

Correct.

MR. SORDILLO:

So while it might be there for a day or two a lot of it . . . that’s not where it’s going to stay but it’s going to be where one truck drops it off and gets put into another truck where it would go off site.  And so it might stay there while that truck is going back and forth from the site and making drop offs.  Is that correct?

MR. WICKLOW:

I mean it could be a week.

MR. SORDILLO:

But what my point being is that it’s not that  . . . . so eliminating that one little area would make it difficult to load and unload trucks necessarily but having the entire area you’re able to maneuver trucks and make due and if there was any leftover it would be put into a more orderly spot instead of in a different area that might just be allowing truck movement.  Is that correct?

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Mr. Villa just a question you have the DEP plan regarding wetlands permits and permit plan now that’s the plan approved by the DEP it didn’t call for that whole area to be . . .

MR. VILLA:

Well we’re several sheets in this area . . .

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Yeah but it doesn’t call for that whole area to be storage area per the approved plans.

MR. VILLA:

That wasn’t the only drawing that they approved.  What we had to do because there were so many easements and lines on the drawing we had a separate drawing just for . . .

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
If you call that now as a storage area do you need approval from DEP since all of that area wasn’t considered storage area before?

MR. VILLA:

It was considered storage area.  It wasn’t precluded from being a storage area.
MR. BUCZYNSKI:
It just says preexisting gravel area to remain.  It doesn’t say to be used as storage.

MR. VILLA:

Yeah but we indicated to the DEP on other sheets that they approved that it was going to be storage and they understood that.

MR. WEISS:

Well again we’ve got to make sure that we’re talking the same thing.  I don’t think anybody on the Planning Board has any issues about storage of your vehicles so let’s just remove that from the conversation.  We’re really focusing on storage of product temporarily week, day, month it doesn’t matter we want to address how we’re going to store product.  Okay so we have no problem with your trucks, with your equipment, with your seasonal items I am speaking for the Planning Board but I think that’s where we are.  We really need to focus our conversation on how are we going to orderly come up with a system because you know as we sit here I can sit here and say well we give you the ability to store product of 150 by 120 foot lot which is almost about a third of an acre Gene is that about right?

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Right.

MR. WEISS:

What would stop you from taking in storage from a friend in the business?  I’m not suggesting that you’re going to do that but we wouldn’t be able to stop you and this could be a storage yard.  I don’t think we want it to be a storage yard and I’m sure you don’t want your business to be a storage yard but the reality is you probably have the right to do that and I don’t think the Planning Board is comfortable with giving you carte blanche to say this is a third of an acre where you can store stuff.  And that’s why we want to make sure that we say this is where you can put your stuff and so we want you to tell us how you can satisfactorily get us an orderly area where you can put your product.  
MR. SORDILLO:

Understanding the Board’s concern and I just spoke to the client and initially we were saying that whole back area from the building back but talking to the client further we’d be possibly cutting that directly in half and just use the rear half.  So it would be approximately where the loading spaces end to the rear fence of the property.  That would then cut the original discussion area or the 150 by 120 in half to 75 by 120.  
MR. MCGROARTY:
And Mr. Chairman may I ask Mr. Villa just so I understand again the DEP’s position is they don’t want any kind of structures out there like . . . 

MR. VILLA:

Permanent structures.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Okay so . . .

MR. VILLA:

Anchored.

MR. MCGROARTY:
So I have seen in any number of places where they put blocks for bins.  I mean concrete plants do it you know . . . 

MR. VILLA:

Yeah that would be more of a permanent structure and we did not purpose to do that we discussed that with DEP.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Okay so they would consider that kind of a structure . . . 

MR. VILLA:

It would be more like a permanent retaining wall let’s call it or a wall to contain . . . . 

MR. MCGROARTY:
Got it so that’s no good to them.

MR. VILLA:

Correct.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
As far as the area you’re talking about now just so we’re in the same ballpark here where your edge of your loading space is you’re saying all of that gravel area to the south of that?

MR. SORDILLO:
Approximately I would . . .

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Straight across to the fence.

MR. SORDILLO:
Yes.

MR. BUZAK:

Going all the way to the septic system.

MR. SORDILLO:
So we’d say 75 feet from the south fence.

MR. BUZAK:

Mr. Villa why don’t you just show what you are talking about because candidly the engineer and I have different views of it and the engineer I’m sure is right.

MR. WEISS:

You’re back on A-1 correct?

MR. BUZAK:

Yes A-1 sheet 3 is what we’ve all been looking at.

MR. VILLA:

A-1 is a little small we can use A-3 which is sheet 8 of 11 and even though the loading spaces aren’t on this sheet we’re looking to come from the split rail fence which is just beyond the orange line you see here which is that cross hatched area which is the easement restriction.  We’re coming north about 75 feet and coming from the mounded septic, the edge of the gravel just east of the mounded septic system all the way across east to west.

MR. MCGROARTY:
I measure about 80 by 100 thereabouts?

MR. VILLA:

Yes.

MR. MCGROARTY:
About 800 square feet you’re proposing.

MR. BUZAK:

No 8,000.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
8,000 square feet.

MR. MCGROARTY:
8,000 I apologize 8,000.

MR. VILLA:

We could designate that on the plan as storage area for vehicles and materials. 

MR. BUZAK:

So there would be a space between the loading dock, the end of the loading dock if I understand this correctly . . . .

MR. VILLA:

Well it’s not a loading dock.  Let’s not use that term for the tape it’s simply an area that proved we have an area to load and unload next to the garage doors.  That area will be generally clear so people can get in and out of the garage doors.  So we’re talking from basically from the southern end to where we show that that area is available down to the line with the circles on it which is the split rail fence which is near the easement line.  And it’s, I guess we’re calling it about 80 by 100.

MR. WEISS:

And you don’t have a concern about blocking access to those five parking spaces?

MR. VILLA:

Well obviously we wouldn’t want to block them so people could get in and out in the morning and at the night but if temporarily they were blocked during the day when they’re out working I don’t think that’s a problem.  And they would be used where equipment would come back at night and they would come back there and people would take the cars out.

MR. MCGROARTY:
May I at the risk . . . please don’t take this the wrong way I don’t wish to be argumentative or rude, in the real world forget about those spaces.  I mean they’re at the back end of the property if you guys really want to use, the two gentlemen want to use this area for storage its storage.
MR. VILLA:

Okay.

MR. MCGROARTY:
I mean in the real world no one is going to go back there to park anymore and if the Board is comfortable with this approach I mean it’s not going to be easy to delineate in the field because it’s all gravel back there there’s no striping down or . . . . and I don’t know how often the town is going to concern itself with going out there but you’re sort of on your honor here to make sure you stay within that area because quite frankly if the Board’s approving this if it’s more or less 8,000 square feet to the south I mean they’ll have to stay within the stockade fence but it may creep up towards the building on occasion.  It may or may not I mean no one is going to be watching them on a weekly basis.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
And you’ve got the traffic circulation for loading spaces they don’t need that whole 85 feet for loading spaces.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Right but what I’m getting at is to avoid the potential problem and I wanted to avoid the potential problem of saying those spaces have to be kept available because they’re not going to be.  I mean I think to be honest about it you know you guys deal with this stuff every day.  I don’t think anybody is going to go out there to move a ton of stone to open up a fake parking space let’s be honest.  But if the Board is approving it thinking that space is going to be there it sets the stage later for a problem.  And that’s what I think we’d rather avoid.  I would ask also if you could again just going along for the sake of discussion that the Board has not approved this yet but can you please tell us on the record what kind of materials you anticipate storing.
MR. WICKLOW:

Mulch and sand.

MR. LAURANO:

Stone.

MR. WEISS:

Is there a way to possibly delineate this storage area like just make another stockade fence if you were to . . . like I see you have stockade fence that you have to do . . .

MR. VAN NESS:

Split rail.

MR. WEISS:

Split rail I’m sorry split rail fence.  My thought is if we’re going to eliminate those five spaces in the back and then take a split rail fence and make it a true delineation that way it’s black and white where your product is going.  And I’m not suggesting you limit it to those five spaces but whatever we agree upon come up with a truly marked area.

MR. WICKLOW:

It’s delineated on the outside; if you delineate it on that part you’d never get access to it.

MR. STASZAK:

Well even if you put a couple in to block it out . . .

MR. WEISS:

Set a boundary because I’ve got to tell you my concern and we’ve over the years and I know an example and I don’t mean to bring it up with your application but we had given some of our grocery stores relief from outside storage for seasonal items and we marked it with a little line but if you go there in the height of the summer you can’t see the line.  And forget about it, we should have never done that because they’re going to do whatever they have to based on their product of the week.  And it gets me a little annoyed that they’ve agreed to putting it to the white line like at the A&P but we can’t control that.  So in this case I think we’re looking for you to help us delineate it somehow, another piece of a fence just to mark the border to say this is our area.

MR. STASZAK:

Right two pieces of fence on each end of it and the middle is open just so you’ve got something visual that we can see.

MR. WEISS:

Right we understand your business.

MR. VAN NESS:

One 8 foot section on each side.  

MR. STASZAK:

Even 6 foot.

MR. VAN NESS:

So we can say anything beyond this imaginary line is storage.

MR. STASZAK:

And you can see basically a line between the two.

MR. WICKLOW:

What about a sign or something that would be put in the ground.

MR. VAN NESS:

Okay I mean to me it’s . . .

MR. BUZAK:

It’s less attractive.

MR. VAN NESS:

Yeah it’s not as pretty but . . .

MR. VAN NESS:

If I may Mr. Chair?

MR. WEISS:

Sure go ahead Scott.

MR. VAN NESS:

Chuck this isn’t meant for them to keep vehicles out of there you know is it?  
MR. MCGROARTY:

No.

MR. VAN NESS: They can store materials, vehicles whatever they need to store in the storage area.

MR. MCGROARTY:

Right.

MR. WICKLOW:

Could we do a sign instead of . . . .

MR. LAURANO:

I mean the fence kind of limits what can drive in there and . . .

MR. VAN NESS:

We’re only talking one . . . .

MR. STASZAK:

You’re talking 6 feet on each side.

MR. VILLA:

Mr. Van Ness let me make sure we all understand.  You’re talking about bringing an 8 foot section of fence out here and an 8 foot section of fence out here and that’s a big opening the fence delineates from here south is where you’ve got you know the ability to store.  

MR. MCGROARTY:
Again I thought initially the testimony was there would be no material on site.

MR. VAN NESS:

Make it 4 feet I mean just something to show that . . .

MR. LAURANO:

I think the clarification was we’re not in material production, we’re not bringing material in to ship it out and sell it, we’re not having trucks come in to unload.

MR. MCGROARTY:
No understood, and it’s best that . . . it’s not like you’re not a landscaping business that has material constantly on site.  But you will have material on site but . . .
MR. LAURANO:

Yeah.

MR. STASZAK:

You’ll have leftovers basically.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Yeah at the end of the day you’ve got material you want to bring it back to the site.

MR. STASZAK:

After you did a job but you’ve got a pile of bricks you’re bringing them back to the yard.

MR. LAURANO:

At the same time Chairman you were at the yard today, there is an inordinate amount of bricks that are there that are working there now with what’s useable there now we understand that the useable space is obviously shrinking to if not half or less of what we have there now.  So we’re under the mindset that in the future bricks aren’t coming back to the yard, material is not going back to the yard, we’re not going to be able to store as much material or use as much material from the site that we’re building and our means are going to be elsewhere.
MR. MCGROARTY:
Actually you’re winding up with a lot more storage area than you started with.  This is going to be a lot bigger than those parking spaces.

MR. WEISS:

You know I think the concern is we hear you loud and clear that you don’t really plan on having a lot of things to store so I kind of don’t understand the resistance.

MR. STASZAK:

But if you do you have the area.

MR. SORDILLO:

Sure and we appreciate it and at the same time we don’t want to limit ourselves to that so it’s a matter of how we delineate the area.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Mr. Chairman if I may?  Just to finish the list mulch, sand, stone, you just mentioned bricks.

MR. WICKLOW:

Brick.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Now I would imagine there’s lumber too because you say you have a lumber rack right?

MR. WICKLOW:

There’s a rack there they use them for the forms for footings.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Okay so mulch, sand, stone, bricks, lumber, anything else?

MR. WICKLOW:

Gravel.

MR. MCGROARTY:
That’s different from stone?

MR. WICKLOW:

Stone yeah right, right.

MR. LAURANO:

Miscellaneous materials.

MR. WEISS:

I think we might be going down a bad path Chuck . . .

MR. VAN NESS:

Why don’t we call it landscape materials.

MR. MCGROARTY:
I’m not saying they can do it that’s up to the Board.  I just want to know what they want to put there.

MR. WEISS:

I would hate for us to limit the applicant because tomorrow’s business plan might bring in plants, nursery product and I don’t want to restrict them.  Let’s say they were able to buy a trailer load of Rhododendron and they only need a half a trailer load but they know in the next three months they’ll sell it.  I don’t think we should . . .

MR. MCGROARTY:
Well what I was concerned about though is again you don’t want propane tanks back there; you don’t want other things back there.  Or maybe we can just sort of, if the Board says no hazardous materials, no flammable materials whatever it may be.
MR. WEISS:

I would much rather see it that way than try to come up with a list and then we forget certain items and then put them in a bad position.  But I like that strategy better let’s limit what we don’t want there.  

MR. MCGROARTY:
I mean I figured you know they know what their inventory always is I mean I don’t know if it varies that much but whatever the Board thinks is best.

MR. WEISS:

Well and I kind of looking at it as a long term plan and we hope that the applicant comes to Mt. Olive and stays here for a long time and if the business changes then you shouldn’t have to come before a Planning Board to see well now we’re into “X” and we really didn’t talk about that so I need your approval.  Let’s limit what we don’t want there.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Well whatever, you know I mean anything works for me I just . . . 

MR. WICKLOW:

Non hazardous landscaped material?

MR. MCGROARTY:
I’m sorry?

MR. WICKLOW:

Non hazardous landscaped material?

MR. STASZAK:

Flammable landscape material?

MR. VAN NESS:

Well I don’t know if you can even go there because . . .

MR. LAURANO:

Well we can’t say flammable because of the mulch.

MR. VAN NESS:

Well how many times do we go to Wal Mart to put out their mulch fire?
MR. STASZAK:

Yeah that’s true.

MR. SORDILLO:

I think maybe as the Chairman had mentioned maybe non hazardous material would be you know and possibly identify . . . and say maybe including or not limited to propane tank and give some examples.

MR. VAN NESS:

Fuels, fuel containers.

MR. SORDILLO:

I leave that as well to the Board attorney to . . .

MR. RUSSELL:

How about something like normal landscape material intended for use on client’s sites.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Well I mean the thing is I think it’s good that the Board is trying to (inaudible) but it is the applicant’s case.  They come in here and saying they want to store material, why can’t they tell us what material they want to store?  I mean if it changes it changes and maybe they need to come back.  I mean unless you want to say you know these are some of the typical materials that are associated and maybe plant materials as well but if it starts to become pallets of bags of mulch or rock salt or whatever else, I don’t know.
MR. WEISS:

But that’s a good point and let me ask you one of the things I did see today seem to be pile high of pallets.  Now I don’t know why they’re there I don’t personally think it looks good but are you going to be storing pallets?

MR. WICKLOW:

The whole yard is a mess I mean honestly the yard has been used . . .

MR. LAURANO:

Transfer station.

MR. WICKLOW:

Just basically for whatever we can use it, storage of material and it just . . . we’re so limited where we are and this spot where we’re at is so small that anything above and beyond a piece of equipment went to that yard.

MR. WEISS:

And I think we don’t want . . . the situation that it is now it’s obvious because you’re restricted but I don’t think we want at any point to say well I’m so jammed I had no choice but to stack these pallets.

MR. WICKLOW:

Right.

MR. WEISS:

You know pallets probably shouldn’t be back there it shouldn’t end up in a storage yard.  You know you’re buying brick and brick I’m guessing brick comes on a pallet, stone comes on a pallet and so you move the product out and now you’re left with pallets.  Are you going to store the pallets in the storage area?  I’d prefer that you don’t so maybe landscape products . . .

MR. SORDILLO:

I would say materials associated to the landscape construction trade.

MR. WEISS:

Right but it should exclude flammable liquids, flammable fuel sources and pallets and building debris.  Debris shouldn’t be stored there.

MR. WICKLOW:

Any garbage I mean that would be considered garbage I guess you can say?  I mean garbage . . .

MR. WEISS:

But garbage to one is some treasure to another so perhaps debris.   And I was concerned about those pallets and I figured I understand you’re in a really tough position right now but as you operate I would hate for your property to look like that because we’ve given you a third of an acre to do what you want.

MR. WICKLOW:

They’re deposit pallets so they will be leaving.

MR. WEISS:

Understand where we’re going.

MR. WICKLOW:

Completely.

MR. WEISS:

We don’t want you to have a third of an acre to say hey guys I got property give me your pallets.  You know give me your old brick.  So did we have any kind of an agreement I think we have two open issues and this is before we get back to the lights since that’s where we left off.  But I know that we have . . . we’ve created a list and perhaps the list is maybe we can say normal or typical landscape product to include but not limit and list the products that you’re talking to us about, mulch, sand, stone, brick, lumber, gravel but must not include debris, flammable liquids.  Chuck is it going to right way there?  Because I agree with you I want to be fair to everybody.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Well you want to also include planting material too.

MR. WEISS:

Yeah but that kind of came under normal traditional landscaping product.

MR. SORDILLO:
Yeah we’d be very acceptable to that.

MR. WEISS:

Nelson?

MR. RUSSELL:

I’d be cautious of the use of the word landscape materials.  When I was building my patio I tried to say that the patio was landscaping as opposed to building because it’s constructed by landscapers.  But that doesn’t seem to be the case. 

MR. WEISS:

I hear you I’m not sure what the right word is.  They’re in the business to build patios and . . .

MR. WICKLOW:

Landscaping and masonry materials?

MR. RUSSELL:

Right but patios aren’t considered landscaping.

MR. MCGROARTY:
See we went from, we have storage once in a while, to now we have a storage area, and now we’re not sure are we talking about you know construction material because that’s masonry material that’s the business they’re in?  If the Board is comfortable with the description that you just had then that’s what it will be and if it gets out of hand at some point then . . . . I mean it’s not very visible back there obviously.

MR. WEISS:

Right.

MR. MCGROARTY:
But if it does become a problem then the question will be the definition that you’ve come up with or the description that you’ve come up with, is it enforceable.  Or is it ambiguous to the point that the town really can’t enforce it and if it can’t then that’s what it is.  
MR. WEISS:

Do you have an opinion on that Mr. Buzak?

MR. BUZAK:

I think that the comments where we would use, as you said Mr. Chairman, traditional landscaping products such as mulch, sand, stone, brick, pavers, lumber, gravel and so forth but specifically prohibiting hazardous or flammable materials may be the best that we can do again if that’s where the Board is going.  I understand Mr. Russell’s concern you know landscaping product or landscaping material is a pretty broad category but on the other hand that’s the business they’re in and you know it may not be as precise as we’d like it to be, as an attorney I like to be as precise and exclude everything else but on the other hand recognizing the kind of operation they have here I think this will you know prevent you know the storage of refrigerators and you know debris, construction debris that kind of thing and I think that’s what we’re trying to do here within reason.  So I think that we’ve sort of formed the structure and you know we can put if the Board proceeds to approve it will put together the resolution and you know I’d ask the Board to look at that critically and if you know they have some concerns about it we could tweak it to your satisfaction.
MR. WEISS:

And maybe in that time we could all come up with language that we’re more comfortable with.

MR. BUZAK:

Sure.

MR. WEISS:

So let’s go back then have we agreed to an area of delineation?  And how we’re going to delineate?

MR. SORDILLO:
Yeah I believe the area we last discussed was 80 by 100 in the rear surrounded by the fence at the southern end of the property and we would put a section of fence 3 or 4 feet which . . . .

MR. BUZAK:

It would be, and I was going to say not with a length of not more than 8 feet, or not less than 8 feet I guess right?  To come in to mark it.

MR. STASZAK:

Well what are the typical fence sections about 6 foot?

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
6 foot right?

MR. STASZAK:

6 foot.  Not less than 6 foot.

MR. VILLA:

Okay.  And are we also all of the same opinion that those five spaces could just be eliminated from the site based on the description of the operation here?

MR. WEISS:

And total spots are proposed was it 24?
MR. VILLA:

24.

MR. BUZAK:

And you need 23 or you need 24?

MR. VILLA:

Well you needed 24 including the handicap.

MR. BUZAK:

Okay.

MR. VILLA:

So we’re not taking away the handicap but I’m wondering if we could just get a waiver from the Board for five of those spaces although they may park some vehicles back here we’re not precluding vehicles from being parked in this storage area and obviously there you know they’re going to be restricted from parking out on the highway anyway.  

MR. WEISS:

Will you keep your car stops there?

MR. VILLA:

I wouldn’t even put the car stops there.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Well why don’t you do this, since you’re not going to have the loading docks where they are or loading bays there right?

MR. VILLA:

Right.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Why don’t you just move the five spaces up against the southerly edge of the building?

MR. VILLA:

Yeah as long as we don’t block the garage door we can show it there outside the 6 foot fence.

MR. WICKLOW:

That would actually block the garage door.

MR. MCGROARTY:
But you control the entire site.

MR. WICKLOW:

True.

MR. VILLA:

Well I can put 3 on this side and 3 on that side.

MR. WICKLOW:

Oh I see what you’re saying.

MR. VILLA:

I think we can work that out then we don’t need the parking variance.

MR. WEISS:

The waiver, okay.

MR. VILLA:

Okay we’ll move those.

MR. WEISS:

Hold on let’s let our attorney catch up with that.

MR. BUZAK:

Where were the spaces going to be relocated, adjacent to the building?
MR. VILLA:

North of the 6 foot extensions of the fence to delineate the area to the south of that as storage.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Along the southerly wall of the building.

MR. BUZAK:

Okay that’s what I want to get clear.  Chuck (inaudible) the building that’s what I thought but I think they’re talking about on the gravel area.

MR. VILLA:

We were thinking of putting let’s say here’s where that 6 foot fence is in this . . .

MR. MCGROARTY:
Oh up in here?

MR. VILLA:

We can put a couple in here and 3 in here or something like that.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Oh okay whatever.

MR. VILLA:

As long as don’t block the garage doors.

MR. WEISS:

So it sounds like the testimony was that . . . 

MR. SORDILLO:

Can you just show it to the Board because they . . .
MR. WEISS:

But it was parking right up against the new 6 foot delineation fence that you put up.

MR. SORDILLO
Yes it would be moving north from there.

MR. WEISS:

Not against the building itself.  Do we understand where we want to add those extra spaces?
MS. GADELHA:

Yes.

MR. WEISS:

That’s okay we all understand?  I think we do.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Then you’ll provide a revised plan showing the fences and everything else.

MR. VILLA:

Yes.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Okay.  Can I continue on my report?

MR. WEISS:

I was  hoping you would.  I think we’re on lighting Mr. Buczynski.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
I think we’re pretty much done with the lighting.  They were going to add the revisions to the plan and after that it’s really items 9.9 we discussed already and they provided us with the easement descriptions and 10 was just approval from Soil Conservation.  Regarding fire lanes have you talked to the Fire Marshall at all if they wanted any fire lanes to be delineated around this building?  Did anybody contact the Fire Marshall?  The Fire Marshall might require some type of fire lanes.  Did anybody discuss it with them?

MR. SORDILLO:
We have not received any information from the . . . 

MR. MCGROARTY:
Two story building with offices on the second floor they may . . .

MR. VAN NESS:

I would surmise that the Fire Marshall would say that the driveway from the entrance to Route 206 to the building should be left free of obstructions at all times.  That would generally be I think for this particular site probably his recommendation.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Well we should get some type of approval from the Fire Marshall.

MRS. NATAFALUSY:
Excuse me I sent it to the Fire Marshall and I got a no comment back.  

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
No comments?  Okay.

MRS. NATAFALUSY:
Nothing.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
All right.  No comments that’s fine with me.  

MR. VAN NESS:
I would say for the matter of safety sake that I’m sure . . .

MR. WICKLOW:
It’s actually deed restricted to remain open because it’s an electric easement so its deed restricted.

MR. STASZAK:

The driveway has to be unobstructed.

MR. VILLA:

Correct.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
I have no other items Mr. Chair.
MR. WEISS:

Thanks Gene.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Anytime.

MR. SORDILLO:
Mr. Chairman at this point I would maybe go back to the prior question that was raised regarding the architectural plans that were submitted.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Could we do one thing first Mr. Chairman just probably a smaller items.   Mr. Villa just so we can understand the sign.  You gave us a one sheet 83 square foot sign, 5 foot by 16 feet right?  Is this the sign that you’re proposing out by the highway?

MR. WICKLOW:

Yes.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Okay you mentioned the two stone pillars that are there that was the, I guess that was the structure for Mohawk Oil?
MR. WICKLOW:
No there’s an existing sign pole.

MR. LAURANO:
Steel pole if you . . .

MR. MCGROARTY:
Oh okay.  Where are you mounting this?

MR. WICKLOW:
To that pole.

MR. MCGROARTY:
To that pole.

MR. WICKLOW:
Right.

MR. MCGROARTY:
You mentioned the stone pillars.

MR. WICKLOW:
There’s two brick piers that are there.

MR. MCGROARTY:
You said you had to keep them?

MR. WICKLOW:
Well we can’t change anything up there.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Oh okay so I mean you’re not going to use them for anything . . . you’re not mounting this sign on those.

MR. WICKLOW:
No, no.

MR. MCGROARTY:
This is going on that . . . the Mohawk pole?

MR. WICKLOW:
There was a Mohawk pole yeah, Sunoco?

MR. LAURANO:
Sunoco sign.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Yeah I remember it but how is it going to fit?  I mean do you have a detail on your sheet?

MR. WICKLOW:
It’s like a right angle arm and that is drawn to work with that sign pole.

MR. VILLA:

A metal pole with a cantilever arm at the top.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Yeah in my mind’s eye I sort of remember it but I just sort of sense the Mohawk sign to be a lot smaller.

MR. LAURENO:
Same square footage.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Is it really?

MR. LAURANO:
Yeah. 

MR. WICKLOW:
I think theirs was actually bigger than that.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Now is this going to be illuminated?

MS. GADELHA:
No they said no.

MR. MCGROARTY:
No they did I missed that I’m sorry.

MS. GADELHA:
Yeah sorry no I had asked.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Okay.

MR. WICKLOW:
No.

MS. GADELHA:
I think you should I think this looks nice.

MR. WICKLOW:
For St. Patrick’s Day it actually works very well.

MS. GADELHA:
Exactly it’s so appropriate.

MR. WEISS:

Chuck did you want to see plans of (inaudible).

MR. MCGROARTY:
No I mean we just got it on the record that they’re willing to use the existing . . . because I think that sign pole, I think that pole where it stands today is nonconforming with respect to the ordinance setback but it’s an existing structure and you know it hasn’t entirely been removed.  Has the DOT seen these plans or do you need to give them to the DOT?

MR. VILLA:

The DOT did not have any comments and they did not require us to get any approvals.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Okay.

MR. VILLA:

You know as long as we don’t change the entrance.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Okay and the pole for the sign is not in the DOT right-of-way?

MR. VILLA:

Um it’s right on the edge okay but the arm extends toward the property not out toward the roadway.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Okay.

MR. SORDILLO:
And we are actually asking, one of the variances are is for that existing nonconforming location of the sign within 10 feet of the right-of-way, that is one of the variances that we are requesting as part of this application.

MR. VILLA:

Correct.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Oh were you going to . . .

MR. SORDILLO:
Yeah I was going to go through the architectural and then go to the variances and identify those.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Okay.

MR. WEISS:

Okay so do we have any other questions?  Let’s continue then with the architectural.

MR. SORDILLO:
Thank you.  To give some background we submitted original architectural plans with the application, since then we actually had changed architects and submitted revised architectural plans showing you know how the building was going to be constructed and we actually have as of just this date further revised architectural plans that revise with the new architect and the new plans that I can, I have copies for everybody to disperse.  The reason why we were having some issues with getting these in a final form was the cost associated with the certain construction types of materials and the design which I’ll let our witnesses here testify to.
MR. MCGROARTY:
So the Mendham plans, Mendham Design is not . . . we’re not looking at those.
MR. WICKLOW:

No.

MR. SORDILLO:

No the new plan that I just handed over is the proposed architecturals for the construction of the building.

MR. WEISS:

And the plan is dated March 10th or did we (inaudible).
MR. SORDILLO:

These are now dated . . . .

MR. MCGROARTY:
Do you have enough?

MR. SORDILLO:

I believe there are nine.  All right. 

MR. MCGROARTY:
Howie I can share with Catherine do you need more that way?

MS. GADELHA:

No I think we’re good.

MR. SORDILLO:
Mr. Laurano can you just briefly go through the architectural plans and what the proposed building is going to look like?

MR. BUZAK:

Excuse me are we going to go through each sheet because if we are we should mark them separately.  If we’re going to go through them as a whole we can just mark the plans as one.

MR. SORDILLO:
I think just going through as a whole would be appropriate.

MR. BUZAK:

Okay so let’s mark these as in their entirety A-4 and that consists of . . . .

MR. MCGROARTY:
Can I before you do that Ed?

MR. BUZAK:

Sure.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Mr. Chairman the ordinance does require the architectural plans be signed and sealed.  We’re just getting them tonight and are you okay going through it this way?  I mean the architect, I don’t know if the architect is here.

MR. SORDILLO:
No the architect isn’t here with us today.  We can as a condition of approval provide the signed and sealed plans to the Board you know within a reasonable time.  

MR. WEISS:

Our attorney is suggesting that the architectural . . . if we’re going to discuss it then the architect who drew it should be the one testifying.  So probably should get testimony from your architect.

MR. BUZAK:

Yeah I think that we should carry that testimony because we really need to hear from the architect we need the sealed plans and we need the architect.

MR. SORDILLO:

Well the, I mean the actual construction of the building isn’t necessarily part of the application.  We want to provide obviously this information to the Board you know so the Board understands what’s going on and what’s going to be constructed there.  We would ask that you know we could provide, I understand that the witnesses here aren’t architects and aren’t professional architects that can’t testify to the design of the building but just to describe as to what the proposed construction is going to look like and what type of appearance it’s going to be we would ask if we could proceed that way so that way we could request the Board’s approval at this evening’s meeting.
MR. BUZAK:

Well I don’t think the Board would have any problem listening to testimony about it from the non-experts to explain what’s going to be there but I think the Board cannot waive having the architect appear.  Because these are his plans and part of again that the issues that this Board has gone through in the past is that they think they’re approving one thing and then when it goes up it’s something else.  And that has caused problems in the past and I think the Board is sensitive to that so that’s the reason that we do what we do.

MR. WICKLOW:
Being that it’s so constrained by the DEP approval in this case . . . .

MR. LAURANO:
I mean the footprint is the footprint we’re not allowed to change the footprint.
MR. WICKLOW:
We’re not allowed to change that that’s set forth by the DEP approval permit.

MR. LAURANO:
And the application that we’re here for tonight is not so much for the construction of the building it’s more for the use of the property.

MR. WEISS:

Nelson?

MR. RUSSELL:

I notice that the height of the building has gone from 35 feet to 38-1/2 feet.  Do you need a variance for that?

MR. WICKLOW:
No that’s 40 feet is the allowable height.

MR. MCGROARTY:
45 actually.

MR. WICKLOW:
Right.

MR. MCGROARTY:
So you’re within the . . . 

MR. WICKLOW:
Yes.

MR. MCGROARTY:
And in the G-I zone there are gradations and you’re at the lowest or the most severe is 45 feet so you’re within that.

MR. WICKLOW:
Correct.

MR. SORDILLO:
Yeah what the witnesses were explaining was that the actual construction design was very limited by the DEP as to even the building itself which is why there is requirements as to keeping certain portions open.  And that’s all, that was out of our hands it was required directly within the DEP approval which is why we just at this point we’re hoping to proceed with just general descriptions so the Board, as to what the design and the look of the building would be and since there isn’t really much we could even do with regard to much of the design of the building itself.  

MR. LAURANO:
It’s not as if we’re on Main Street either we are on this protected flag lot.  I mean we are building probably a more architectural and better looking building than what we should be building.  

MR. BUZAK:

There’s no question I think about that, that’s not the issue.  

MR. SORDILLO:
Yeah I mean our intention tonight was to just kind of show and express what our intentions were to build the building but I think the application is more for the site use.  We’re limited on the footprint to this.
MR. BUZAK:

Well the application is for a site plan and candidly when Gene and I or the engineer and I walking into the meeting tonight I was under the impression that the building was going to be the building that was there and it was just going to be renovated.  And when the testimony came in, and that was my own perhaps misreading of the materials but then I looked at the application and the application talks about “to improve the existing building to where it should be able to derive and maintain its equipment”.  So I’m thinking that it’s the building and then when the testimony was that the building be demolished and we’re having a new building there it’s an application for a building.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Even the site plan says existing masonry building to be reconstructed it doesn’t say to be demolished and a new building installed.

MR. BUZAK:

And we’re not critical of that I mean you know that’s fine and we certainly I would think that the Board encouraged that and it’s going to be as you said I suspect a much more aesthetically pleasing building than is there now.  But all of that being said that doesn’t mean to say we don’t have testimony from an architect to explain what he’s doing and how he’s doing it and to effectively own the plans that are being proposed that we are going to include as part of our approval.  So we can talk about what you want to do but I think that that’s not going to preclude the need for the architect to be here.  So would you rather postpone the whole thing that’s fine I mean that’s up to you.

MR. WICKLOW:
No let’s try to work through as much as we can.

MR. BUZAK:

And that’s fine.

MR. SORDILLO:
Okay thank you.  I’m going to ask Mr. Laurano to just briefly describe what the building is going to look like under the most recent revised proposal.

MR. LAURANO:
I mean a square rectangle pretty much with brick on the outside.

MR. SORDILLO:

And there’s an area that has to remain open.

MR. LAURANO:

The area of the left side that shows chain link fence on the first page and you can see 202 and 203 is the open area.

MR. WEISS:

Mr. Sordillo we are just referring to that whole set of plans as A-4 with today’s date.

MR. BUZAK:

That’s correct I’m sorry I did miss that.

MR. WEISS:

So if you would mark that as A-4.  So your comments so far are in reference to the sheets that are included in A-4.

MR. BUZAK:

Correct thank you Mr. Chairman.

MR. WEISS:

Okay go ahead.

MR. LAURANO:
All right it’s a simple two-story building pretty much to gain our offices on the second floor and warehouse and garage use on the first floor.  We’re proposing a brick veneer and a simple gable roof.

MR. SORDILLO:
And could you just identify what side of the building or the northerly, westerly is on each page of the exhibit A-4.

MR. LAURANO:
West is on the first page, south is on the second, east is on the third, north is on the fourth.

MR. MCGROARTY:
This is very similar then to the, if I may Mr. Chairman?

MR. WEISS:

Sure.

MR. MCGOARTY:
To the other set of plans by this same architect except for the roof it would appear?

MR. LAURANO:
Yes.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Where that one was flat this is . . .

MR. LAURANO:
Yes peaked.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Is the floor plan that we got with the previous set of plans the same?

MR. LAURANO:
Yes.

MR. WICKLOW:
It’s exactly the same building it’s just aesthetically different.  We did a couple of different conceptual drawings to see what we could afford.  The flat roof was just to cost prohibitive, we’re back to this.

MR. MCGROARTY:
And on the westerly elevation which is the front the first sheet.

MR. WICKLOW:
Right.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Which is really the entrance to your building to through the parking lot that chain link fence that’s where the . . . you really it’s not stilts as much but that’s going to be opened up?

MR. WICKLOW:
Columns yes.

MR. MCGROARTY:
And then on the last sheet where there are the three portals that have chain link fence that’s, and the Board may not have the floor plans, but that’s the opposite side of the building so in other words everything on that ground floor in that portion, I think that’s the northerly side of the building, everything there is going to be exposed except for the chain link fence enclosure is that right?

MR. LAURANO:
Right.

MR. WICKLOW:
Correct.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Okay.

MR. LAURANO:
It’s actually the section we gave back to allow for the septic to be installed.

MR. SORDILLO:
Was there any other questions regarding . . .

MR. WEISS:

No I don’t think it would even be fair to ask Mr. Laurano any questions I think he was simply reviewing the plans for us and certainly not representing himself as an architect so I don’t think we’ll question Mr. Laurano on his testimony.

MR. SORDILLO:
At this point I’d like to ask Mr. Villa to go through the variances that were being requested of the Board in connection with this application.

MR. WEISS:

Actually before you do that Mr. Sordillo we’ve made just a quick note that we’re going to note A-5 as your sign, your proposed sign elevation dated 1/5/11.

MR. SORDILLO:
Thank you Mr. Chairman.
MR. WEISS:

You’re welcome.  Okay go ahead Mr. Villa.

MR. VILLA:

Okay I think for the benefit of the Board and to keep this thing moving we refer to page 3 of the report from Mr. Buczynski  of Van Cleef.  There are three variances that we have noted on our site plan the first one is a variance from ordinance Section 400-101F(1)I where we are proposing some outdoor storage and parking within the rear yard setback of the principal building.  You have a requirement in that chapter and verse that says storage has to be outside the setbacks due to the limited space here.  We feel that would be a hardship and that we should be allowed to store and park closer to our property line than allowed.  The second variance is from ordinance Section 400-83 where there’s existing and proposed improvements within what’s defined in your ordinance as a 100 foot stream corridor and buffers that are required by your ordinance but we feel that since the site is so constrained and so limited that this Board should consider granting us a variance from your strict compliance with the stream corridor and stream buffer ordinance and we have restricted the property and are being restricted by DEP significantly which limits our use of the property and we would ask you to consider that variance.  The third variance is from ordinance Section . . .

MR. WEISS:

Mr. Villa hold on one second.

MS. GADELHA:
How far back are you?  If it’s 100 feet how far are you?

MR. VILLA:

Well its measured 100 feet from any stream there’s actually a ditch along the fence line here, a man made ditch so theoretically it would be 100 feet from where you see this orange line the way I interpret your ordinance from that man made drainage course.  So there is an existing building and there will be the storage areas in that area.  
MR. BUCZYNSKI:
I don’t know really if the ordinance calls it from the ditch the ordinance really references from stream.

MR. VILLA:

Oh okay.
MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Yeah so that would not come into effect.

MR. VILLA:

Okay and maybe that we were just being conservative and they think we had to request that variance we’ll drop that.  The last one it’s for the sign as we discussed to be put back on the existing pole that was used by Mohawk Oil.  It is within 10 feet of the right-of-way and we’re not looking to intensify its location but it does not meet that standard so that to me was technically a variance.  Any questions on those two variances that we’re proposing at this point?

MR. WEISS:

No unless Chuck did you have anything you wanted to talk about?

MR. MCGROARTY:
Well the basis for the outdoor storage is a C-1 variance that it’s a hardship because of the conditions you described.

MR. VILLA:

Because of the configuration of the site.

MR. MCGROARTY:
And there’s no . . . I’ll just flush this out just for the record, there are no neighbors around you as such so other than Lamtec so you don’t . . . I take it from your inference that there’s no negative impact or no . . . .
MR. VILLA:

No impact on any of our neighbors based on the location of their existing buildings and the fact that it’s not residential use it’s more commercial to our west and to our north.

MR. MCGROARTY:
And this is a limited situation so the Board can feel comfortable that it’s not going to have adverse impact, substantial detriment to the town’s zoning ordinance?

MR. VILLA:

Correct.

MR. MCGROARTY:
You would agree with that.

MR. VILLA:

Yes I would.

MR. SORDILLO:
And Mr. Villa part of the hardship as well is because the building can’t be relocated it has to be at the same location so we can’t move the building either within any of the area.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Right that’s fine.  Now on the sign what’s your rational again now for this?

MR. VILLA:

That we’d like to reuse the existing sign . . .

MR. WICKLOW:
Pole.

MR. VILLA:

Pole based on its location so that we don’t propose any additional disturbance in environmentally constrained locations.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Let’s just do it just so we get out on the record.  If you were to adhere to the ordinance setback of 20 feet would the sign, would it affect the visibility of the sign.

MR. VILLA:

Yes, yes.  There is vegetation to our north and the further away we go from the right-of-way the less visible the sign would be.

MR. MCGROARTY:
So you would no doubt offer that that’s a C-2 type variance it’s a better proposal in that it (inaudible) the public safety . . .
MR. VILLA:

The benefits would outweigh the detriments yes.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Yeah I assume that but in addition that by leaving the sign closer to the highway its safe.  Is that fair to say?

MR. VILLA:

Yes I don’t see where it’s going to make it any less safe or create any safety problems.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Right.  It would be more visible if you were allowed to keep it where it is where a sign has existed for years presumably with no problems, not that we know of any, anybody crashing into it, it’s better there than set back another 10 feet people would be less likely to see it.

MR. VILLA:

Correct.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Fine.

MR. VILLA:

Thank you.

MR. WEISS:

Let me also note for the record that nobody from the public here to object I imagine that you’re not getting any concerns from the neighboring properties.  Scott?

MR. VAN NESS:
Is that sign post actually behind the guard rail right now?

MR. WICKLOW:
It is.

MR. SORDILLO:
And Mr. Villa with regard to the existing size and shape of the lot this is a flag lot correct?

MR. VILLA:

Yes I would characterize it that way.

MR. SORDILLO:
And there’s an existing nonconformity with regard to minimum lot width and lot frontage that . . .

MR. VILLA:

Correct I didn’t identify them as variances it was a preexisting nonconforming condition.  Mr. Buzak may not agree with me on that in light of some other work we’ve been involved in but again we cannot change that deficiency.  We have 226 feet of frontage or width at the right-of-way whereas 250 feet is required by your ordinance.  

MR. BUZAK:

How much did you have?  I’m sorry what was the . . .

MR. VILLA:

226.

MR. BUZAK:

226.

MR. VILLA:

226.41 along the right-of-way.

MR. WEISS:

Does anybody else on the Planning Board have any other questions for Mr. Villa so far?

MR. VILLA:

If you want I can quickly go through the design waivers.  Most of them we touched on, if you don’t see a need to go through it . . . 

MR. WEISS:

Chuck, Gene?

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
I thought we said we didn’t need this.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Yeah I thought Gene recommended . . . .

MR. WEISS:

Okay.

MR. VILLA:

Thank you.

MR. WEISS:

Chuck was there anything else from your report that you want to . . . 

MR. MCGROARTY:
Oh I didn’t do a report I thought Gene’s report completely covered it there was just a few things I throw in to . . .

MR. WEISS:

You know I have a question on the process.  And although Mr. Villa did a wonderful job with the planning testimony I would call it that, is that kind of out of the ordinary that the engineer provides testimony on the variance?

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Well he’s a professional planner.

MR. VILLA:

I also have a planning license.

MR. WEISS:

Okay.

MR. SORDILLO:
Yes when I asked for qualification I only said engineer but I meant planner as well and I do apologize.
MR. WEISS:

Well that’s good for the record then that Mr. Villa is also a licensed planner.

MR. VILLA:

Yes I think I stated that initially.

MR. WEISS:

You did and I think originally at least in my mind you were qualified as the engineer.

MR. VILLA:

I’m sorry.

MR. WEISS:

And I don’t have a problem with the testimony I think maybe we should just say that you were just testifying as a planner.
MR. VILLA:

Okay.

MR. WEISS:

Correct?

MR. SORDILLO:
Yes, yes Mr. Chairman and for the record if the Board would recognize Mr. Villa as a professional planner as well as a professional engineer.

MR. WEISS:

I certainly have already has anyone else?  Okay thanks.

MR. VILLA:

Thank you.

MR. SORDILLO:
At this point it concludes our application I know the Board would like some additional testimony from an architect as to the design of the building.  If there is any, I’m just going to implore to the Board if there’s any way that we can waive that requirement we would request that you know the applicants have really been putting in a lot of time and money into this and you know just the fact that you know we’re looking to start construction and start moving forward finally after a very long drawn out DEP review and approval we would request that if it’s something the Board cannot waive then we understand but it’s something that we would request if it is possible.

MR. WEISS:

I think I’ll turn to the attorney I think ultimately Mr. Buzak has . . . .

MR. BUZAK:

I don’t have the ability to do it and I’m not, I really can’t recommend to the Board that they do it.  I understand what you’re saying I think, well let’s see what our schedule is because it’s focused testimony I would ask that when the plans are resubmitted with the seal that we also get the floor plan because right now we have the floor plan from the architect with the old elevations.  We’re using the same architect is that correct just a different elevation, different design of the building?  But at least your testimony was the floor plan was going to remain the same.  

MR. WICKLOW:
Yes.

MR. BUZAK:

Okay if we can put that together that would be good.  Catherine?

MRS. NATAFALUSY:
When do we carry this to?

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Do it the first meeting in April?

MRS. NATAFALUSY:
Well the first meeting in April we’re carrying the Blue Sky to, that’s on April.  

MR. WEISS:

I would imagine just my own insight this can’t be more than just a couple of minutes.

MR. BUZAK:

Yeah.  Blue Sky was supposed to be here tonight and we’re carrying them so it’s really fair for this applicant to precede that application and finish this one up.

MRS. NATAFALUSY:
Okay.

MR. WEISS:

I would suggest and certainly I would have no problem even if it makes a little heavier schedule that we’ve been very good at getting out of here in a timely manner I would like to see this application get back in front of us as quickly as possible.

MRS. NATAFALUSY:
Okay we’ll carry it to April 14th.

MR. WEISS:

That’s our next meeting?
MRS. NATAFALUSY:
Yes.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Maybe what we can do in addition to the architect if Mr. Villa can at some point the plans will all be changed and revised but maybe at least sheet 3 showing the storage area delineation.

MR. VILLA:

I can do that.

MR. MCGROARTY:
And anything else Gene you need.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
I think he has sufficient time to revise the plans completely don’t you relative to the lighting details and the like?

MR. VILLA:

Yes.

MR. BUZAK:

You’re not going to have any more testimony with regard to the plans or anything; the testimony will be limited to the architect so I would think he could do that.
MR. WEISS:

I would suggest that Mr. Villa doesn’t need to be here.

MR. VILLA:

When would you like the plans prior to the 14th meeting Mr. Buczynski and I’ll . . .

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Well they’re not going to be addressed at the 14th I think we’re just hoping to get revised plans prior to then.

MR. VILLA:

Okay.

MR. BUZAK:

It would certainly make it easier in terms of doing a resolution because then I can refer to the plans as opposed to trying to articulate you know . . .

MR. VILLA:

Can do.

MR. SORDILLO:

And I’m just throwing this out there I don’t know if it’s a possibility but maybe the resolution can be you know drafted into such a form that you might be able to consider it the same meeting or no.

MR. BUZAK:

This is what the Board does the Board typically adopts memorializing resolutions.  So they take the action that night and then memorialize it at the following months meeting.  My understand is that you can begin to proceed, and Chuck and Catherine can you just answer this?  If they get the approval and we’re just going to do a memorializing resolution can they go in and begin to get their building permits or anything like that?  Or do they wait until they actually get the resolution itself?  I don’t know what the mechanics are and I don’t want to mislead the applicant with the process.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Are we going to do a developer’s agreement for this?  

MR. MCGROARTY:
I think in addition to the developer’s agreement I think the Construction Official here prefers to wait.

MRS. NATAFALUSY:
Right he does.

MR. MCGROARTY:
For the resolution.

MRS. NATAFALUSY:
And if you need a developer’s agreement it’s not going to matter anyway you have to have a developer’s agreement and then a preconstruction meeting.

MR. BUZAK:

Okay.

MR. SORDILLO:
Who makes the determination on that?

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Well if you look at the project I mean there isn’t really any site improvements relative in grading, the grading of the gravel but there is a light improvement.  We usually don’t bond the septic system but there’s a lot of items here I mean unfortunately to do a developer’s agreement then you’re holding up the project for another one to two months.
MRS. NATAFALUSY:
At least.

MR. BUZAK:

Well I understand all of that and we’re certainly sympathetic to that I think the decision needs to be made based upon whether we need one or we don’t and if . . . not on the timing of the (inaudible) but again I understand that and don’t think that I’m being unsympathetic because I understand what you’re saying.  On the other hand I think they just need to make the decision whether you need it or you don’t and if you don’t that’s great and . . . 

MR. WICKLOW:
When is that decision made?

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
What we could do is what we’ve done in the past for something like this relative to not having a developer’s agreement we can perhaps have them post inspection fees and get a zoning permit.  A zoning permit is like $25.00 right Catherine?

MRS. NATAFALUSY:
It’s $100.00.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
$100.00 it went up in price.  That and the posted required inspection fees so we need a cost of the improvements from the engineer, an engineer’s estimate for the improvement costs and it will determine the inspection fee.

MR. SORDILLO:
To what extent would you like to see architectural plans for that building?

MRS. NATAFALUSY:
We’ll waive the fee for the zoning permit we’ve done that before.  This way everything is on the zoning permit that comes from the resolution and the Construction Code Official has everything in front of him.

MR. MCGROARTY:
I mean the zoning permit really can just refer to this resolution which would be attached which presumably the Construction Official would read.

MR. BUZAK:

So the directive seems to be that you’re not going to need a developer’s agreement.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
They will not need a developer’s agreement.

MR. SORDILLO:
Okay I was going to ask because I got a little confused there at one point.

MR. BUZAK:

Okay.

MRS. NATAFALUSY:
So we’re carrying this to April 14th.

MR. BUZAK:

Yes you should make that announcement Mr. Chairman (inaudible).

MR. WEISS:

Yeah just for the record this application is going to be carried to April 14th with no further notice requested.  And gentlemen I do feel your frustration I’ve been listening to this application since you’ve first came in front of us I certainly know firsthand the pain that you’ve gone through from the day you bought the property.  So we feel your pain and I appreciate the support, as you can tell it’s a very small thing but we’ve come this far we’re much more comfortable doing it the right way one more time.  So again we appreciate the patience that you’re showing now.  

MR. SORDILLA:
To what extent would you like to see the architectural plans?

MR. WEISS:

I think it just needs to be sealed I don’t think we need to have a change in the plans I think we just need the architect present to essentially for the record testify as what we’re going to get.

MRS. NATAFALUSY:
Signed and sealed.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
And add the interior layouts to the new set of drawings.

MR. MCGROARTY:
I mean as long as he’s going to do it he should do it . . . well he does have the address on there.  There’s ordinance standards in there so he should just follow those.  I mean you’ve got to put a title block, block and lot, etc. he should sign it and seal it.

MR. WEISS:

That is standard Chuck?   We’re not asking for anything out of the ordinary.

MR. MCGROARTY:
No it’s the ordinance requirements.

MR. BUZAK:

You just need to look at the ordinance.

MR. MCGROARTY:
And as Mr. Buzak said a floor plan too.

MR. WEISS:

Then we’ll see you in one month the first meeting in April.  That’s not the first meeting in April is it?  Catherine that’s not the first meeting in April is it?

MRS. NATAFALUSY:
The second Thursday.

MR. MCGROARTY:
You want at least one if not more . . . there has to be at least one full set of plans, a full size set because when they’re reduced the scale doesn’t translate.  So at least one full size set.  You want one?

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Yeah I want one.

MR. MCGROARTY:
So one at least to the township so they’re on file.  Is the Board okay with that?

MR. WICKLOW:
That is the scale.
MR. VILLA:

This is to scale.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Is that to scale?

MR. WICKLOW:
Yes.

MR. MCGROARTY:
It does work even at a reduced . . . .

MR. WICKLOW:
Yes it does.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Because we don’t have an architect’s scale with us up here to check it.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
So this drawing was done on 11 by 17.

MR. VILLA:

Yes.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Okay.

MR. MCGROARTY:
All right.

MR. WICKLOW:
So this will work?

MR. MCGROARTY:
If the scale works yes then it’s fine.

MR. WEISS:

Okay gentlemen thank you.

MR. SORDILLO:
Thank you.

MR. WEISS:

So we’ll see you on the second Thursday of April.

MRS. NATAFALUSY:
April 14th.

MR. WICKLOW:
Thank you.



APPLICATION #PB 10-33 – BLUE SKY LAND & BUILDING LLC – (BLOCK 101, LOT 1)
MR. WEISS:

The rest of our agenda this evening just for the record PB 10-33 Blue Sky Land and Building LLC which is requesting a “d” variance preliminary and final site plan on Block 101, Lot 1 that because of our attendance problem tonight the applicant has agreed to move this to April 14th to give him a better opportunity.  As you know they need five of seven and having a quorum of five of five was not in the applicant’s best interest.  So he took the option to go with April 14th.



APPLICATION #PB 10-19 – JOAN BORG – (BLOCK 6502, LOT 8)
MR. WEISS:

And then Catherine maybe you can fill me in on PB 10-19 Joan Borg.  She was looking for a certification of a preexisting nonconforming use on her property of Block 6502, Lot 8.

MRS. NATAFALUSY:
Right and then last December I received a letter from the applicant’s attorney requesting that the time on this application be extended through March 31, 2011 that her situation . . . that she would hope at that point that she would be allowed to continue with the process and that they would contact us.  I haven’t heard from them at all, the application expires March 31st so the Board has to take some kind of action tonight.

MR. WEISS:

So just so you know what it is this is a property that’s pretty much across the street from the Metro Grill.  At one point it was some kind of animal, it was a kennel of some kind or something.

MR. VAN NESS:
It was a printer.
MRS. NATAFALUSY:
And it was a printer after that.

MR. WEISS:

It was a printer after the animal facility?

MRS. NATAFALUSY:
Yes.

MR. WEISS:

And the applicant is proposing some kind of mixed use.  Regardless it doesn’t matter the applicant is not here the application expires we’re not meeting again before March 31st so what form of action would be required to take?

MR. BUZAK:

I think I had said to Catherine that it should be denied without prejudice and she had mentioned a dismissal without prejudice and I think maybe we ought to do both.  And I know that sounds a little strange but we don’t have the ability necessarily to dismiss something but that’s really what we’re going to do and I don’t want to get into some kind of (inaudible) approval issue here.  So I think we should dismiss and deny without prejudice based upon a lack of prosecution.
MR. VAN NESS:
Can we give it a 30 day next meeting reprieve type thing?

MRS. NATAFALUSY:
No.

MR. BUZAK:

We can’t because we need their approval if we need to do that.

MR. WEISS:

So I guess what I will do is let me look for a motion to deny and dismiss without prejudice due to lack of prosecution.

MR. RUSSELL:

So moved.

MR. STASZAK:

Second.

MR. WEISS:

Do we have any conversation about that?  Seeing none let’s take a roll call.

MRS. NATAFALUSY:
Rene Gadelha

- yes




Nelson Russell

- yes




Jim Staszak

- yes




Scott Van Ness

- no




Howie Weiss

- yes

MR. VAN NESS:

I just almost feel as though I mean if it’s an applicant that can make that property that’s empty for so many years but you know if we can get them to move forward and get something done over there.

MR. WEISS:

Well I think the interesting thing it’s done without prejudice so they’re more than welcome to come back and reapply.

MRS. NATAFALUSY:
They can come back and this has been going on for at least 7 or 8 years that she has been saying she is going to do something with the property and nothing ever comes of it.  

MR. WEISS:

So we encourage her to come back Scott and when she does we will do it without prejudice.  Motion to adjourn?

MR. STASZAK:

Aye.

MS. GADELHA:

Second.

MR. WEISS:

All in favor?

EVERYONE:

Aye.

(MEETING ADJOURNED AT 10:00 P.M.)








Transcribed by:








Lauren Perkins, Secretary








Planning Department

